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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Spark Mall and Parking Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion
We have auclited the accompanying financial statements of Spark Mall and Parking Private

Limited ("the Company"), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31st March 2025, and the

statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the statement of changes

in equity and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to the flnancial

statements, including a summary to material accounting policies and other explanatory

information. (Hereinafter referred to as "the financial statements")

ln our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,

the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the

Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the lndian

Accounting Standards ('lnd AS') specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies

(lndian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, and other accounting principles generally accepted

in lndia, of the state of affairs of the Company as at Marcn 31, 2025, and loss (including other

comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section

143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further Cescribed in the

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are

independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the lnstitute of

Chartered Accountants of lndia (lCAl) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to

our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made

thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these

requirements and the lCAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained

is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. i
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lnformation Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon
The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Directors Report, but does not include the
financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

ln connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. lf, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financiat
Statements

The accompanying financial statements have been approved by the Company's Board of
Directors. The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation and presentation of these financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with
the lnd AS specified under section 133 of the Act and other accounting principles generally

accepted in lndia. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

ln preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but
to do so.
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Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting

process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a

whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's

report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect

a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are

considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, specified under section 143(10) of
the Act, we exercise professionaljudgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the

audit. We also:

ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether

due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and

obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The

risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one

resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, ure

are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate

internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating

effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors use of the going concern basis of

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists

related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern. lf we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required

to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements

or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on

the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
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Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user
of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and
(ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matter

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2024 were audited by the
predecessor auditor, who have expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial statements
vide their audit report dated 5h September 2025.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements:

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report to the extent
applicable, that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the
accompanying financial statements.

(b) ln our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Statement of Cash Flows

dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

1
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(d) ln our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the lnd AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on

record bythe Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March,

2025 trom being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

(0 Wth respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company as on 31 March 2025 and the operating effectiveness of such
controls, ret'er to our separate Report in Annexure-A wherein we have expressed
unmodified opinion;

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion
and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company, as detailed in note 31 to the financial statements, has disclosed the
impact of pending litigation(s) on its financial position as at 31 March 2025.

ii. The Company did not have any longterm contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2025.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the lnvestor

Education and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March

2025.

iv. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no

funds (which are materialeither individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced

or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other

sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including
foreign entity ("lntermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing

or otherwise, that the lntermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest

in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on

behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,

no funds have been received by the Company from any person or entity, including

. r :.li'

foreign entity ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, ed in writing
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or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in

other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneflciaries; and

(c)Based on such audit procedures performed as considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us
to believe that the management representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) above,
contain any material misstatement

v The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year ended 31 March
2025

vi. Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used
accounting software systems for maintaining its books of account for the flnancial year
ended March 31, 2025 which have the feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility
and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded
in the software systems. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come
across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with and the audit trail
has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record
retention.

As required by section 197(16) of the Act based on our audit, we report that the
Company has paid remuneration to its directors during the year in accordance with the
provisions of and limits laid down under section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Orde/'), issued by the
Central Government of lndia in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the
"Annexure B" a statement on the matters specifled in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to
the extent applicable.

M/S.RMSHAH&CO
Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg No. 109756W

cA. H DIPAK KATYARI

Paftner

Membership No.618282
Nagpur, September 4, 2025
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Annexure A" To the lndependent Auditor's Report referred to in Paragraph 1(f) under
'Report on Other Legat and Regulatory Requirements' section of our report of even date
to the members of Spark Mall and Parking Private Limited on the financial statement for
the year ended 31"t March 2025.

Report on the lnternal Financial Gontrols with reference to Financial Statements under

Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statement over financial

reporting of Spark Mall and Parking Private Limited ("the Company") as of March 31, 2025 in

conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that

date.

Management's Responsibility for lnternal Financial Controls
The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal

financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the

Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note

on Audit of lnternal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the lnstitute of

Chartered Accountants of lndia. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and

maintenance of adequate internal flnancial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring

the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the

safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and

completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial

information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over

financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance

Note on Audit of lnternal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and

the Standards on Auditing, issued by the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of lndia and

prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit

of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of lnternal Financial Controls and, both

issued by the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of lndia. Those Standards and the Guidance

Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain

reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting

was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

:i',,--':
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Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the

internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our

audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness

exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based

on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.

Meaning of lnternal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies

and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,

accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)

provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation

of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations

of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's

assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

lnherent Limitations of lnternal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including

the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements

due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the

internal financial controls over flnancial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the

internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in

conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Opinion
ln our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the

Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over

financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating

effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal financial control over financial reporting

criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control

stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of lnternal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

issued by the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of lndia.

M/S.RMSHAH&CO
Chartered Accountants

Firm No. 109756W

CA.Y, H DIPAK KATYARI

Partner

Membership No.618282

Nagpur, September 4, 2025
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"Annexure B" referred to in paragraph 3 under the heading 'Report on Other Legal &
Regulatory requirement' of our report of even date to the financial statements of Spark
Mall and Parking Private Limited for the year ended March 31,2025:

A statement on matters specified in paragraph 3 & 4 of the Gompanies
(Auditor's Report) Order 2020 ("the order"), in terms of section 143111) of the Gompanies
Act, 2013,

ln terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the
books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of
our knowledge and belief, we report that:

i)

a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including
quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible

assets.

b) The property, plant and equipment have been physically verified by the management

during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. ln our

opinion, the frequency of physical verification program adopted by the Company, is

reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.

c) The Company does not own any immovable property (other than properties where the

Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the

lessee and buildings created on the lease properties). Accordingly, reporting under clause

3(iXc) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment and intangible

assets during the year.

e) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any

benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988(as

amended) and Rules made thereunder.

(a) The Company does not hold any inventory. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iiXa)

of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

ii)
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(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore
rupees by banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets at any
point of time during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iixb) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

a) The Company has made investments in, provided loans or advances in the nature of
loans, to its subsidiaries, related parties and others during the year as per details given

below:

(Rs. in Lakhs)

b) ln our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
investments made and terms and conditions of the grant of all loans and advances in the
nature of loans and guarantees provided are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest of
the Company.

c) ln respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans granted by the Company, the
schedule of repayment of principal and the payment of the interest has not been stipulated
and accordingly, we are unable to comment as to whether the repayments/receipts of
principal interest are regular.

d) ln the absence of stipulated schedule of repayment of principal in respect of loans or
advances in the nature of loans, we are unable to comment as to whether there is any
amount which is overdue for more than 90 days. Reasonable steps have been taken by

'ii. '-,

Aggregate amount granted/provided during the year
- Subsidiaries 0.35
- Joint Ventures

- Associates

- Other related parties 8,922.86 4,273.25
- Others 9.27

Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date

- Subsidiaries 13.95
- Joint Ventures

- Associates

- Other related parties 34,463.11 11,832.67
- Others 1,115.13

the Company for recovery of such principal amounts and interest
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e) ln respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans granted by the Company, the
schedule of repayment of principal has not been stipulated. According to the information
and explanation given to us, such loans have not been demanded for repayment as on
date.

0 The Company has granted loan(s) or advance(s) in the nature of loans which are
repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment, as per

details below:

(Rs. in Lakhs)

The Company has not entered into any transaction covered under section 185 of the Act.
As the Company is engaged in providing infrastructuralfacilities as specified in Schedule
Vl of the Act, provisions of section 186 except sub-section (1) of the Act are not applicable
to the Company. ln our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given

to us, the Company has complied with the provisions of sub-section (1) of section 186 in
respect of investments, as applicable.

ln our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the

Company has not accepted any deposits or there are no amounts which have been

deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the
Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, reporting

under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Central Government has not specifled maintenance of cost records under sub-section
(1) of section 148 of the Act, in respect of Company's products/ services / business

activities. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

a) ln our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including goods and services

v)

vi)

Outstanding As at 31st March 2025
Promoter

Directors

KMPs

Subsidiaries 13.95 0.11%

Related Party 11,932.67 91.29%

Others 5. 1 31,11 8.60%

Total 12,961.75 100%

vii)

tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income{ax, tax, duty

:7r,yp a!)y19; :r,i.,;,,,,,.,
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of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues, as
applicable, with the appropriate authorities. Further, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect thereof were outstanding at the year-end for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory dues
referred in sub-clause (a) which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities
on account of any dispute except for the following:

viii) According to the information and explanations given to us, no transactions were
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
lncome Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) which have not been previously recorded in the books
of accounts.

ix) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
defaulted in repayment of its loans or borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to
any lender.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us including representation
received from the management of the Company, and on the basis of our audit procedures,
we report that the Company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any bank or
financial institution or government or any government authority.

(c) ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, money
raised by way of term loans were applied for the purposes for which these were obtained.

(d) ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, and on
an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised by the
Company on short term basis have, prima facie, not been utilised for long term purposes.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall

Property
Tax Act

Property
Tax

New Delhi
Municipal
Corportation
(NDMC)

2014-
2019 229.34 187.00 42.34

examination of the financial statements of the Company, the C taken any
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funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised

any loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries.

(a) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public

offer (including debt instruments), during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause

3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) During the year, the Company has made private placement of fully convertible
debentures . ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to
us, the Company has complied with the requirements of section 42 of the Act and the
Rules framed thereunder with respect to the same. Further, the amounts so raised have
been utilized by the Company for the purposes for which these funds were raised.

xi) (a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given

to us, no fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company has been noticed

or reported during the period covered by our audit.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation

made to us by the management of the Company, no report under sub-section 12 of section

143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13

of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, with the Central Government for the

period covered by our audit.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation

made to us by the management of the Company, there are no whistle-blower complaints

received by the Company during the year.

xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules , 2014 are not applicable to it.

Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xiii) ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all

transactions entered into by the Company with the related parties are in compliance with

sections 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable. Further, the details of such related

party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements, as required under /
lndian Accounting Standard (lnd AS) 24, Related Party Disclosures specified in

Companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 as prescribed under section 133

of the Act.

ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the

Company has an internal audit system as per the provisions of ,-s.efllOrr{Q"8 
of the Act

""!.:.i.. , ,

ii.l, " '' , .;
1. ,. fi , . ':-"11\,\ J

tl',.. 
I 
---:,;,.;; ri;!.it''

xiv)



xv)

xvi)

xvii)

xviii)

xix)

M/s.RMSHAH&CO
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

MahalaxmiChambers2lCentralAvenueDarodkarChowk-Nagpur440002

which is commensurate with the size and nature of its business' we have considered the

reports issued by the lnternal Auditors of the company till date for the period under audit'

According to the information and explanation given to uS, the Company has not entered

into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors

and accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xv) of the order with respect to compliance with

the provisions of sectio n 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company'

The company is not required to be registered under section 45-lA of the Reserve Bank

of lndia Act, 1934. Accordingly, reporting under clauses 3(xviXa),(b) and (c) of the Order

are not apPlicable to the ComPanY'

Based on the information and explanations given to us and as represented by the

management of the Company, the Group (as defined in Core lnvestment Companies

(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) does not have any CIC'

The company has incurred cash losses in the current financial year and in the

immediately preceding financial years amounting to Rs. 2443.80lakhs and Rs' 3866'99

lakhs resPectivelY

There has been resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and based on the

information and explanations given to us by the management and the response received

by us pursuant to our communication with the outgoing auditors, there have been no

issues, objections or concerns raised by the outgoing auditors.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial

ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of

financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our

knowledge of the plans of the Board of Directors and management and based on our

examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our

attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date

of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing

at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from

the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future

viability of the company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the

date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all

liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get

discharged by the company as and when they fall due

.. r.i
:i. ,

.',,,:.'.



M/s.RMSHAH&CO
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Mahalaxmi Chambers 21 Central Avenue Darodkar Chowk-Nagpur 440002

xx) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not meet

the criteria as specified under sub-section (1) of section 135 of the Act read with the

Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and according, reporting

under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xxi) The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of

financial statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in

respect of said clause under this report.

M/S.RMSHAH&CO
Chaftered Accountants

Firm Reg No. 109756W

CA. YASH DIPAK KATYARI

Partner

Membership No. 618282

Nagpur, September 4, 2025
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Spartr Mall ard ParldrS HEte Llnltcd
Balasce Shcet a! at 31lt March 2(Xl5

Partlculan

A!3ett
1 Ilo8-cureEt stetr

a) Property, plant md equipment
b) lntangible assets
c) Finmcial assets

i) Investments
ii) Other finmcial assets

d) Defened tax assets (net)

e) Other Non Curent Assets

Total I{or-cuneat a33ctt
2 CureEt a3.ctt

a) lnventory
b) Financial assts

i) Investments
ii) Trade receivables

iii) Cash and cash equivalents
iv) lrms
v) Other Finmcial Assets

c) Curent tax assets (Net)

d) Other curent assets
Total curert iltett
Total Asretr

Equitv a8d llabllittet
I Eoultv

a) Equity share capital
b) Instruments entirely quity in nature
c) Other equity
Total Equtty

Year elded
31rt March 2025

Yc.s eEdcd
3lrt Mrrch 2orl4

2

3

4(a)

4(b)

5

6

I{ote I{o.

7 (al

7 lbl
7 lcl
7 (dl

7 lel
8

9

10

10 (a)

11

( { IE laLh. I ( t la lalhr I

47.94
15,667.40

34,463.1 I
1,030.40
4,447.63

7.O5

62.13
16,201.62

25,540.25
1,030.40
5,162.14

56,(,63.57

703.47
6t.69

129.48
12,967.75

279.76
74.36
11.OO

47,996.54

r,083.28
5s6.80

22.25
8,678.88

162.28
145.90
29.54

1.51
70,285.(,8

1,t92.97
46,500.00
(14,917.34],

to,674,92

t,792.97
28,500.00
(r1,3r1.20)

2 Ltabtlttt6
No!-cureat llabllltler
a) Financial liabilities

i) Borrowings
ii) Other Finmcia.l Liablities

b) Provisions
Total !o! cureEt llabllltle.
cureEt llabllltlet
a) Financial Liabilities

i) Borrowings
ii) Trade payables

(A) Total outstanding dues of Micro enterprises md
Small Enterprises

(B) Total outstanding dues ofcreditors other thm
micro enterprises md small enterprises.

iii) Otler finmcial liabilities
b) Other cunent liabilities
c) Provisions
Total curent llabllltler
Total Llabllitlor
Totrl Equtty ard Liabllltls

Material Accounting Policies 1

The accompmying notes are an integral part of the finmcial statements.

As per our report of even date

RMSHAH&CO
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Fim Reg. No. 109756W CIN :

s2,775.63 LA.3AL.77

79,244-71 2t,147.31
1L2.59
28.26

19,3E3.39 2L,2AA.L6

t7,764.27 t7,327.45

26.67 40.42

49.56 t57.26

1,153.43
322.90

4.08
18,126.06 19,(x)5.53
s7,5O9.45 40,293.70
7o,2as,Oa 58,675.45

For md on behalf of the Board of Directors
Spark Mall and Partlag PrlEte LlElted

74427

KuEar NuEar Cupta

72

13

14

15

16

t7
18

L9

55.59
39.09

t64.7 7

112.88

3.97

"w_Partner
Membership No.618282
Place : Nagpur

Date
UDIN

Managing Director
(DIN:O8122589)

Deepa&nJ Tbakur
Chief Financial Officer

Director
(DIN: 09338O14)

""s#tpt', ?irt > o Mz Dt\i7 67 G

.tl

Company Secretary



Spark Mall a1{ pa3lrlng Privatc Limtted
Statement ofProfit and Loss for the year ended 31st March 2025

Parttculars

Revenue from oPerations

Other income
Totd incoEe (I+II)

w.

Expeases
Purchase of stock-in-trade
Changes in Inventories of Stock-in-trade
Direct expenses

Employee benefit exPenses

Finance costs
Depreciation and amortization expenses

Other expenses

Total expenses

V. Proltt/(loss) before exceptlonal ltems and tax (I' fVl

3,66L.47

1,L74.62

566.51
185.t2

4,123.O7
565.05

55.95
6,67O.33

13,oo8.851

29
(3,OO8.851

352.01
352.O1

(3,360.E71

(6.11)

(2e4.64)

42.1O
(24.t31

(37.50)

124s.271

(3,606.14)

l28.L7l
l28.L7l

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Spark Mdt and Parking Private Ltmited
CIN 78427

Year ended
31st March 2O25

Year ended
31st March 2O24Note No.

20
2l

( < Ia lakhs I ( t In lalhs )

I.
u.
III.

2,621.3r
1,040.16

1,821.81
373.55

22

23
24
25
26
27
2a

2,195.36

26.69

397.95
167.71

4,487.54
573.03
265.56

5,9L8.47

(3,,723.LLl

(716.90)vI.
vII.
vm.

xu.

Exceptioaal Items (Net of taxes)

Profit/lloss) before tax (V+VII *

Tax expense
(i) Current tax
(ii) Deferred tax

Proflt/llossl for the year (VII-VIII)

Other Compreheaslve Income
Itetns that will not be reclassilied to profit or loss:

Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on defined beneht Plan

Fair value changes on Equity Instruments through other
comprehensive income

Gain on sale of Investment as per Income Tax

Gain on Investment sold already Recognised in OCI

Income tax effect relating to items that will not be

reclassilied to profit or loss

Net other compreheasive lncome Items that will not be
reclassified to proflt or loss:

Total comprehensive iacome for the year (VII+VIII)

Earningi pcr equity share lFace Value oft lof
a) Basic (in {)
b) Diluted (in <)

* Profrt before tax is after exceptional item and tax thereon.

Material Accounting Policies

The accompanying notes are an integrd part of the financial
statements
As per our report of even date

RMSHAII&CO
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

(4,440.OU

16,44.701

1644.7O1
13,795.31rx.

x.

5.50

66.60

10.69

42.79

xr. 13,712.5.21

30 (31.EOl
(31.80)

1

Firm No. 109756W

CA KATYARI
Partner
Membership No. 618282
Place : Nagpur
Date : 04-09-2025
uDrN- LJ,6lsxlGrql

, '!.
t.r it

KuEar
Managing Director
(DIN:08122589)

Kumar Gupta
Director
(DIN:09338014)

gbpjE
Deepakral Thakur
Chief Financial Officer

Shrud Z'nansan
Company Secretary
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ApsL Ur[ ud Pu. Ll88 HBte LlEltGd

Cuh Flil StrtcDeat fc tJrc ycu codcd 31rt Uuch 2O25

At rt
31rt tsch 2(}25

At rt
Strt Uuch 2(,l4

Prtttcdu.

Al Cuh trw fror oPcsrtl88 rctl'ltlc'
Prclit before tu
Psof,t bcfcc tu
Nor-CilL A4JutaeDtt fot:
Depreciation/mortiztion on continuing opemtion

Shm in toss/(prcIit) of partnership fim
AdJEtEcott f6 cerh floE of ottq rctlvltlq:
Add: NoE-oPqrtla! dPasct debltGd to P&L

Finmce costs

Loss on sale of equity shtres

Accounts written ofi
fd: Ifoa-oPotloE.l lacoDd qcdltGd to P&L

Dividend income

lnterest Incomes

Income frcm ScmP Sa.le of assts
Opdtlai Psont beforc retsrg crPttd ch'8gct

U@eEGat lE torlhg cepltel ud ottcr:
lncreas/(drcreasl in tmde Payables
Increas/(dccreasel in other curent liabilities

Increas/ (decreas) in other finmcial liabilities (Cuftntl

lncrea*/ (dccrea*) in Other non-curent frnmcial liabilities

lncreas/ (decreas) in Provision

Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables (Cument)

Decreas/(increas) in other lmmcial assts (Curent)

Decrcas/{increasl in other linancial assets (Non Cument}

Decreas/(increas) Other Cument assets

Decrease/(lncrease) in other non cument assets

CEh gcD6rtcd &on /(urcd la| opGntlou

Direct tues paid (net of refunds)
Net c.rh flil &E/ lurcd tal oPcs'tlag 

'Gttvltlcs lAl

Bl Crh f,w &on lovothg rctlvltlo
Decrease/(lncreas) in lrms ild Advmces

Decrea$/(tncreas) in non-curcnt Investments

Decreas/(lncrea*l in curent Investments

Purchas of lxed assts, including intangible assets, CWIP and

@pital advances

Sa-le of lxed assts, including intangible assets, CWIP and

epital advmces

Irss on sale of SPAIW Shdes
Dividend income

lnterest incomes

Shtre in prclit of Partnership fim
I{ct cuL flry Eoa/(urod trl hvothg rctlvtttct lBl

CI Crtb trd &oE flruchg ectlvltlcr

{Decrease)/increas in long tem borrowing

(Decrease)/increas in short tem ootrowing

(Decreasl/increas in debenturcs (entirely equity in nature)

Finmce costs
Net cerh tlry &on/lrred trl b flauclng actlvltlet (Cl

DI l{et trqare/ldocrc] ls cuh ud cuh aqutnlcrtt (A

+B+Cl
Cash md cash equivalents at thc beginning of the yeil
Cuh ud cerh cquinlcrt .t tto cnd of tLo ycu

Material Accounting Policies : Note- 1

The accompmying notes de il integral part of the linmcial
statements

Ar per ou s.Pott of cvcn dstc

l)cashflowstrereportedusingtheindirectmethodasperlndAsT.cashFlowstatement''

to7.23 (123.s31

For and on behalf of the Boild of Directors of

SpuL Udl ud Puttng Prtnto Llnltcd

laIshthtI ( a t! hth.

(3.008.85) 1)

13,oo8.8sl

565.05
(166.961

4,t23.O7

(0.06)

(870.88)

lr2r.46l
12ro.o2l
(984.7 l)

(s6.ee)

4.61

495.1 I
(1 17.481

18.54

573.03
180.93

(1.2s|

137 r.2sl

4,487.54
716.90

9.42

164.31
46.0 I

12,o4O.741.

(s6.s0)

4.O1

1526.171
554.43

(1,0o0.00)

(2.22l'

(7.0s)

(338.O81 lt,7ol.79l

7 t.54 71. 16

lt4,282.47].
(9,2r7.49].

397.74

(16.6e1

14,298.691

125,7t7.771
7,974.O9

(e.L2l

o.22

(716.90)

L.25
371.25

0.06
870.E8

t66.96

(1,8s8.6o)

436.82

18,000.00

(4,01 1. 17)

3,901.47

28,soo.00

RU8IIAH&CO
L:HAKI ERI'D AUUUUN IAN ITJ

Fim Reg. No. 109756W
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Guptr

U.uihi Dlrector
(DINr0Er22589l

Dlrcctos
(DII[: O933EOr4l

Partner
Membership No.618282

Place : Nagpur
)!>P,I :/'

Doopelrrql Thalru ,h*k
Co8pry ioqetralr

Date :04-09-2025

,r,. as-gt8>8 XOqlDn'U7676 Chlcf Fhuclal olllccr
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sqt-st I'155'o9

lr2,o8r.o8l 122'39s.681

,4,t23.07} 14,487.s41

12,465.15 23,902.77
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SpsL Udl .nd PrsklDg Prlrtc LlElted
St tcEcEt ofch.agG. ls.qulty for thc y.s cEd.d 31rt tuch 2O25

A Equlty Shsc Crpltal (Refar Ifotc !lo. lol

B.laac. .. at l* Apt1l,2O24

ChaESc. lE F,qulty
Shuc Capltrl duc

to prlor pcrlod
anota

i...:,*,,.fii:i. 
1 

":Xt l:*::, 
1 

**r,,r,,rrr -

1,L92.97 \.192.97 I I 1-t92.97

:,ffffiStr"ou*ANrs
nrm nee. 

{to. 
t09zs_ow

ldYl
*rNK*o*,

2025

It lE Lecrl

Guptr

E, Oth.r E,qulty

31.t fuch 2025

I{etuo ud Purpoe of crch ra..r..

Securities Premium is uwd to record the premium on issue of shres, The reserye is utili$d in accordmce with the provisions of the Compuies Act,
2013
R.t.lned EmlBg
This resrye represnt undistributed accumulated emings of thc compmy as on the datc.
tr lr Blu. chaEgct oE l,qulty lq.true.nt. through othor coElrrchcErlv. lEcoEe
This resrye reprcsnts the cumuLative gains md losses dising on the revaluation of equity instruments on the balmce sheet date measured at fair
valuc through other comprehensivc incomc.
Ro-EoB.ueEcEt arlar/ (lorerl oa dollaed bcBcllt pLa.
This mount represnts Actuuial gains md losses relatcd to chmges in the prescnt value of the defmed benelit obligation resulting from experience
adjustments (the ellects of dilferences between the previous actuuial assumptions md what has actually occutred); md the efiects of changes in
actudial assumptions. This is in complioce with lnd AS 19 - Employee Benefits.

Material accounting policies
The accompmying notes ffi m integral part of the fnilcial statements
Material Accounting Policies : Note- 1

e,

For md on behalf of the Bo{d of Dtectorc of
Spst U.ll aBd PsrLtES HEIG LlElted

fa!.Ehg Dlrcctor
lDIx3Oa122s89l

Pdtner
Memberhip No.618282 (DIN: O9338O14)

tt.r$-
Shrutfultrmr

B.hac. r. .t l.l Aptllr 2O2S

Ch.aao. ln Equlty
Shs. C.plt l duc

to pdor perlod
CtrOA'

R$t tGd B.hEc.
at at l.t Aprll

2023

Chat . l. .qulty
.hdo 6plt.l

durht tho crE.nt
y.s

B.lucc rt .t 31.t
U.tcb,2024

1.192.97 r,192.97 1.L92.97

P.rtlcuLr. Total

8.cEltla.
PseEluE R.t lEcd E nl!8r

RaE4aucEsat
Dcflacd Ecneflt

P!,ro

Galn/lLoc| oo
r.cotaltloB oE
lavortEGEt lE

.qulty lB.tsuEent
.t Fala Valu.

B.lrnco a. .t Lt Aplll,2o24 5.318.O3 t16.432.1 1l 5.85 197.OO I I l.3l 1.20
Chmges in accountins policy
Prior Period Ercrs
RGrt tGd B.hlco r. .t l* Ao',,l 2024 5,314.o3 tr5.832.1 lt 5.8s 197.O3 ( 1r,31r.2O1
Prcfit/(loss) for the yed
ffi

(3,s60.87) 13.350.471

Resryes trasfered from OCI to retained eming
due to sale 59. l5 (se.1s)

Totd CoaprcheadvG lacoEa for th. Yc.r r3.301.72r 11.06 1315.48t 13.606.t4t
Bq[.Ecc at at 31.t fuch, 2025 5.318.O3 120.133.431 t6,92 I I 18.4s1 tt4,9t7,u

PattlcuLrr R6.eE.r rEd Suplur Other Coaprohca.lYc IEcoEo Tot.l

Sccultl..
Proalua Retrlaod Earalat

R!EeE.ueEeEt
Deflaod BcEGSt

PhD

Grla/(Loul oa
sccogEluoE oE
lavcrtacat la

cqulty lD.truE.nt
.t FaIt V.lu.

B.Lrc. .r .t trt Aprtl, 2023 5.3r8.O3 113.O35.80r L7e 118.31 t7.s98,68t
Chages in accounting policy
Prior Period Enorc
R..trted B.hac. .. .t l.t ADrtl 2023 5,318.O3 113.035.80t L?A l1a,3l 17.594.64r
Profit/flosl for the Yed t3.795.31t t3.795.31r
Other Comprehensive lncome for the yed 4.O7 74.72 42.?9)
Totel CoEpsGhGa.Iv. hcoEo for th. Ye{ (3,795.31t 4.O? 7A,72 13.7t2.52t
B.Lac. .. .t 3ltt [uch. 2024 5.314.O3 116,832.1 1l 5.85 197.O3

_. 
,1

.l iirir:. I ti
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Compmy Secretary
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EpcL f.ll Ed Pdlbg Pslv.tc LlElted
Ilotc. to lhEcl.t .t.tcEeat for thc ye{ crded 31rt Uech 2025

1 IATERIATACC!)IrTIilG FOLTCTES A.IID ITOTES TORUIITG PART OF THEACOOUI|TS AS AT 3I.t UARCH 2025

I) Corentc bfor.tlol :

Spek Mall & Pdking Private Limited (Fomerly l(nom as SMS Paking Solutions Private Limited) is Privab Compmy doBiciled in India ud incorporated on

I2-O2-20O8 undq the provisions of CoBpaies Act 1956. The CoEpdy ha been migned a coEposite public private partnerstriP (PPB Project to develoP a

Multilevel Cd Prking cum Co@ercial Complex at l(arlmagd, New Delhi by the Municipal Corporation of Delhi (MCD). The compmy hG received a

.substetia.l CoEpletion Certificate' frod Municipal Corporation of Dethi (MCD) dated O2Dd September 2013. The Compuy is engaged in t}le busines of

consmcting 6d providing; Dultilevel cd paking blocks for general us for pubUc md private pdies on tumkey, contactual md on built oPerate 6d

f@sfer [BOTI bffiis dd to ca4r on the busiaess of infidhcture milageeent ed conduct re*rch, design md develoP technologies for ed in to value

added pioducB to conduct suruey md resent ed to develop technoloties for ellective pollution control @d enviroment Protection md all sch other

work o! underbking in reliation to the works md the geneaal objecb of the CoEPmy.

u) Bslr of prcpmtlo! :

(ll CoEpuue rltb ltrD As
Thes 6nmcia.l shteaeDB havc be€n prepded in accordmcc witlr tl.e Indim Accounting Staddds (hereinafter refered to 6 the 'Ind ASJ as notified by

MinisEy of Co4Drate A.[Ia]s pursumt to Section 133 of the CoEpmies Act, 2013 (Act') read Fith of t]re Compmies (Indim Accounting Smduds)

Rules,2olS 6 Manded ed other relevmt provisions of the Act.

The accounting policies ue applied consistently to all periods presnted in Finmcial Statemenb except where a newly ised accounting statddd is

initiallly adopted or deyision to m existing accouting stadad requtes a chage in the accounting policy hitherto inu*.

HLtorlcrl C4t co!rcptior.
T?te fhmcial #tements have been prepaed on a hi$orical cost b6is.

caftnt Vcru troB cureqt cLt lll6tlo!
All asts md liabilities have been clasdfied N curent or non-cuent r per the Compmyb noma.l operating cycle (tuelve months) md other

diteria *t out i! t].e schedule lll to the Act.)

Rouadln{ olf of AEoultt
All mounts di$losd in fndcial statements md notes have been rounded olf to the n€dest lakhs s pe. the requireBent of Schedule III, unles
otheffi* stated.

Ua of E tlE.tc. Ed JudeEGnt :

The prepdation of finmcial stateEenb in confomity with lnd AS requires the aaateEent to aake judpenb, e*imates md NEPtions that efrect tlle

repofred mounts of revenues, expensq asts md tiabilities ad the di*loue of contingent liabilities, at the end of tlle reporting period. The estimates

md judgements usd in the preptration of finmcist shtemenB ae continuously eva.luated by the CoEpmy ed de basd oa historical experience md

vdious other asuaptions md factors (including expectations of future eventq that the Compdy beli€ves to be re@nable under the existing

ci1cumshces. Difrerences between .ctual results @d estimates ile recogni*d in the period in which thc re$lb de knom/aaterialisd. The sid

esiEates tre bed on the facB dd events, that €xisted as at the reporting date, or that occEed after that date but provide additional evidence about

conditions existing N at the reporting date.

The uero involving estiMtion of uncertainty md judgeEent at the date of tlle fnocial statements, which Eay @us a Eaterial adjustuent to the
carrying Mounts of asts ud liabilities within the next finmcia.l yea given below

U*fu1 lives of property, plmt ed equipoent
Curent Til Payable
Valuation of defered td a*ts
Fair value meNreEert of fnmcial instruments
Defned Benelit Obligation

Probable outcode ofaatters included under Contingent Liabilities

Detailed iDfomation about each of the* estimates md judgeEents is included in relevat notes together Eitll inlomation about the
b6is of cal@tation for each a.fr6ted line iteE alfected in fimcial shtements

Ivl frtcrld Acountln[ Pollclg :

.l PrcErtv. Plut & f{ulpEc.t :

l) Re@grltlon & fGourcEca2
All iteEs of property, plmt md equipaeat de shbd at cost lcs depreciation dd idpaiment, il my. Historica-l cost includes er(penditure that is
direcdy atribuhblE to the acquisition of the iteas.

Adv@ces paid towdds acquisition of property plant & equipEent outstading at each baldcc sheet date is clasified G capital adv@ces under
other non cur€nt a*t6 md the cost of ast lot put to u$ before sch date tre dislosd under " Capital work in progress", Sub*quent costs se
included in *le Nt's carqring @outt or recotni*d s a *pdate Nt, 6 appropriate, only when it is probable that future econo@ic b€nefits

assiated sith the iteE will flow to the CoEpdy md the cost of the iteE ca be memured reliably. Thc c{r].ing @ount of uy coEponent
accounted for 6 a spdate Nt is derecogni$d when replaced. All otler repairs md Efitenoce de chaged to the Shtement of Pro6t dd lrs
during the reporting period in which they tre incured.
Non-DoneblJr grmt hm been recogni*d at a nominal uount s per CoEpmies flndim Accounting Standdds) Second AdendEent Rules, 2018
(tl:e RulesJ on 20 September 2018.

(q,
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apsl ldl Ed Pultlt Prlnt. LlElt.d
lfoto to llrEcl.l .t.tGEGlt fot tb. tcu c.d.d 31.t freh 2025

tl) DcprccLttor lGthod Ed uldud t l[G :

Dcpreciation on each pat of m item of propcrty, plant dd equipaent is provided using t}re Sraight Line Method baed on the u*fu1 Iife of the ssst s

esrimaEd by the EaageBcnt 6d i,s chdged to thc Shteaent of Profit md Ls s per the requtement of Schedule II of the Coopuies Act, 2013. Thc

e$i@te of thc u*firl lifc of tha asts hs bccn resd bcd oa technical advice which considers the lahrc of the ast, thc usgc of tlte ast, cxPcctcd

physical wcd md ted, tll. op€rating conditions of the ast, mticipated technological cheg€s, mmufacturera wffioties md Eaintenmce sPPort, ctc'

The estiEated usful life of itcEs of md is Eentioned below:

P.rtlculd
Eh-IqYcE

5to48
dd 5to15

md Fixrures 8to ll
Vehiclca 8

Oftce Equipmcnts 1to26

bl

Thc CoEpdy, basd on technica.l Esscnt madc by tcchnicet cxpcfr md aaag€mcnt estimate, dcprcciates ceGin iteEs of ProPerty Plart md

Gquipocnt (s mentioncd bclow) oyer estiEabd usful livcs which ec different from thc usful lives prc$ribcd undcr Schedulc ll to thc CoEPeics Act'

2OI3 (Schcdulc III). TtE mmaS€dent believes Orat thc* c$iEated u*ful liycs ae rea.li$ic md refled fair aPProxiEation of the period over which t}r€ assts

dc likcly to be usd.
The u*ful livcs, residual va.lues of each pdt of d ite6 of property, plant md equipment md the depreciation oethods tre ,evicwcd at the end of cach

IinMcial yed. If my of thcs expcchdons difler froE pr*ious estimates, sch chdge is accounted for u a chmgc in m accounting €stimte. Pre$ndy

Rcsidual Va.luc of a.ll thc asts excluding Right ClNficd Mder Inhgiblc Asts {whole Residual Value Consid.red s NIL) dc cdricd at 57o of t}!e original

co$ of acquisition.

DGroiEltlo.:
Thc errying mount of e iteB of prolErqr, plant 6d equipment is derccogniad on disposa.l or when no futurc cconoaic bene[b ec cxPected ftom its u$

or dispoel. Thc tain or los aising frod the Dcrecognition of m iteB of property, pl6t ed equipment is mcmred 6 th€ dillerence betueen the net

disposl preccds od the car4ring uowt of the iteE ud is recotnied in the ShteEent of Profit dd Los whcn thc item is derecognizd'

htudbLA&t
AS pcr appcndix A & B to Ind AS - 11, Sctricc Concesion Andgeacnt'beseen North Delhi Municipal Corporation 8d Thc coEpmy, ha acquired

exclusive- usage rights for 50 yees under the build, om, opcrate ed rusfer *hef,e of thc Public Private Pffiership ('PPP) *heae in respect of
properties d@loped 6 automated Eulti-level Cd Pdkint md Comercial Space md cLassified them unde. the head 'lntangible Asts'. The compmy hG
divcd at tlte cost of sch inhdble assts in accordecc with thc Provisions of Ind AS- 1 l.

IcsuFEGrt at r@6ltlot:
lntemally gcncrat d inmgibtes including re*dch co* @ not capibliz.d 6d the rcl,atcd expcndimre is recognired in tlre StatcEcnt of Proft md Irs in

t,.e period in which thc expcndiEre is incuncd. Following initial recognition, inhgible assb de ffii€d at co$ les accuaulatcd mortiation md

accuoulatcd impaiment los, if dY.
The cost of m item of lntfigible asts compriss of its purchas pricc including iEport duties md other nonrefundable Purch@ tAes or levies, ditcctly

afribuEblc cost of brinting the asst to its working condition for its inended us ud thc initial e*ioatc of dccomisioning, rcstoration md doilq'

liabilities, if ey. Any radc di$ounts ed rcbates dc deducEd in ffiiving at thc purch@ Pricc' ExP€nditute telatcd to ptans, designs &d drawings of

buildings or ptant Md Eachincry is capitalired undcr relevet hcads of inhgfule asts if the recognition criteria tre Eet.

laortlatlo!!
Itrbigibte Asts with fniE lives de @orti@d on a Straight Linc bris over the esiEated usful econoDic lifc. The @ortiation cxpens on intqn8iblc

in the shtcEcnt of Pro6t od Ls. Thc esti@ted u$ful life asb is Bentioned b€low:

P.rtl@lE Ih-XsY.E

Goodwill 15

5to48
CoBputcr sftwses 1to26
Gcueral Afiueoent Drasincs 26

md thc uortiation octhod for m ast is rdiewcd at thc cnd yed ey

expcchtions differ froE previous c$i6ates, such chute is accoutcd for s a chmge in m accounting esimate.

DGiG@Elttrc!:
The cat4ling uount of u intdgible ast is dcrecogniad o[ disposl or when no futurc econodic benefrb de cxpected &om its u* or diqnel. Ttre gain or

los rising from the Derecognition of a inmgible ast is meNured s thc difierence beueen tlle nct disposl pr@eeds ud thc carqring @ount of the

inhgibte 6st ud is recogniad in the ShteEcnt of Profit md Los when the ast is dcrecotnized.

_.a:.,:-.\-,.,.-
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cl RcE.u. E@6ltio!

Revenue is ocroed bed on tresction pricc,which is the consideration,adjusd for volume disount,*Nice lwcl credits,perfomace bonu*s,Price

concesion md incentives,if dy,6 specified in the contract in the custoEer.Revenue ale excludes tdes collected fioE customers.

The coEpmy hG applied IND AS 115' Revenue From Confacb sith Cu$omers'which eshblishes a cooprehensive frMework for demining whether,how

much md when revenue is to tre recogni*d.

6d. of @d.:
Revenue from sale of goods is recogni*d when all the Material risks & rewuds of the omership of the goods have been pasd to the buyer, usually on

delivery of the gods. Revcnue from the sle of g@ds is Eesured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of retums md allowdces,

tade di$ounts ed volMe rebates.

Re.d.rlE! of cwlc€:
Semices provided by the compmy ue re follows.

1 Rent, Co@on Area Maintenece Chdges ed other chuges with relation to the usEe of the propefries od vtrious utility chdges is accounted for

on accrual bsis except in ce where ultiEate collection is considered doubtful.

2 Food Couf, chdges de accounted on revenue shdint / Fixed Rental bris s per the aEreeEent entered with tlre Pmies'

3 Cs Pdkin8 Collection h6 been accounted on etual b6is

dl Forcla Camncv T@rction
IlltLl Ee6ltloa:
Foreign cureocy rmsctions de recorded in the reporting curency, by applying the foreign curency @ount the exchmge rate between t}re rePorting
cufiency ud foreign curency at the date of tresction.

conEdo!!
Foreign cunency aonetary items ae retr@slated using the exchmge rate prevailing at the reporting date. Non-honetary iteEs, which ae measured in

tems of historical cost denooinated in a foreign cutrency, de reported using the exchmge rate at the date oI tresctions. Non-monetary iteEs which de
aeasred at raL va.lue or other simild va.luation denoainated in a foreign currency ile hmslated using the exchmge rate at tlle date when such va.lue was

detemined,
Etch6e DlIIere.6i:
All resulting exchmge difrerences de capialired s a part of thc cost of t}le resPective as$t.

cl Le.'4:

The coEpoy hG adopted Ind As 116 for accounting of lecs
A. .lc*e

The coapmy recogni$s a right-of-u* Nt ud a leN liability at the lee comencement dab. The right-of-u* rct is initially medured at cost, shich
coBpri$s the initial @ount of the lee liability adjusted for my lee paJeents Eade at or before the co@enceEent date, plus 8y iDitial direct co$s
incured ud m estiEate of costs to disetle md reEovc the underlying ast or to restore the underlying ast or the site on which it is located, lcs dy
lee incentives received.

The right-of-u$ ast is sub*quently depreciated using the straight-line Eethod from the commencement datc to the cdier of the end of the usful life of
t}te right-of-u* ast or the end of the lee teE. The estimated usful lives of right-of-u* asts de detemined on the sme bmis as tho$ of property
ud equipoent. Ii addition, the right-of-u* ret is periodically reduced by iEpaiment loss, il ey, od adjusted for certain re-Eeasrehents of the leas
liability.

The lee liability is initially Eesured at the presnt value of the le# pajeents that de not paid at the comencedent date, disounted using the inbrest

rate implicit in the lee or, if that raE camot be readily dete@ined, compmy's incremental bonowing r#.
Generally, the coEpmy uss its increEental boFowint rate ff the di$oEt rate. [Eas paJr€nts included in t]re memrement of the leas liability coDpri$

the following:

- Fixed pajments, includint in-substa.ce lixed paJmenb

- Vdiable leas payments that depend on m index or a rab, initially me*ured using the index or raE 6 at the @mmenceEent date;

- Aeounts expccted to be payable under a residual va.lue gutrmtee; md

- The exercie price uder a purchu option that the coEpmy is reMmbly certain to exercis, lee pajEents in m optional renewa-l period if tl.e
co6puy is remnably certaiD to exerci$ m extension option, md penalties for edly termination of a lee unles the comPmy is remmbly certain not to

terinate edly.
The lee liability is aeNred at @ortisd cost using t}le ellective interest Eethod. It is reEeasred when thete is a chege in futuro lee Pajments sising

AoB a ch@ge in m index or rate, il there is a chege in the coEpmy's estinate of tlte mount expected to be payable under a residual value Sudatee, or if

coapmy chogcs its assent of whether it will qerci* a purche, ext€nsion or temination option.

When the lee liability is remeNured in this way, a corespondinS adjustmcnt is Eade to the carrying Mount of the riSht-of-us asst, or is recorded in
profit or los if the cdrjaing @ount of the right-of-u* ast h6 been reduced to zero'

thoft-ter lce. 6d LBa of lot-Eluc E.t
The coapuy h* elected not to recogni* right-of-u* mts ad lere liabilities for short-terE lees of real eshte ProlErties that have a le@ tem of 12

aonths. The coEpmy recogni$s the lea$ pajrents Nciated with ttle* lees m m expen* on a sEaight-line b6is over the leN tem'
Aa a lcer

Lee incooe from olrcrating leres where the Compily is a lesr is recogni*d in iocome on a sraight-line basis over the lea* tem uDles the receiPts se
structured to indea* in line with expected general inlLation to coEpenste for the expected inllationary cost increes. The respective lea*d aets ae
included in tlle balmce sheet bed on their natue.
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fl Tm on lg@ac:
In@6a T.&a:
Incoae h compriss of cuncnt 6d defered incoac to{, Income ta is recognisd s m expen* or incoEe in the StateEcnt of ProEt ud Los, except to

thc cftcnt it rclatcs to items directly rccogni$d in equity or in OCI'

Cur.t In@E. ?r
Cufient incomc E is raognied basd on the e$ietcd td liability coEputed a-fter taking credit for alloweces dd excmptions in accordmcc with dre

lncoEe Td Ad, 1961. Curent incomc H asts ed liabiliti€s ee m€Gured Et the mount cxpected to bc recovered from or Paid to the mtion

authorities. Thc tu rotcs dd h laws usd to coEpute tlre @ount uc tllos that ee enacted or substetively enacted, at the rePorting date.

DcfcFd t*
Dcfercd h is rccotniad on tcaporarjr difrercnccs b€Mccn the c{rying @ohB of asts ed liabilitics in the finacial MtcEenb md thc conesPonding

H bess u$d in thc coEpuhtion of lffiblc pro6t unde r Income Tu Act, 196 I .

Dcffied h liabilitiec se generally recognired for all Bable EEporary difrerences. However, in cas of tedporary difeaenccs t]rat tris froa initial

recognition of aets or liabi[ties in a rmsction (othcr thm busines coEbimtion) that alIect neither the tqable pro6t Dor the accounting profit, defcred

h liabiliries dc not rccognired. AIe, for teEporary dillcrences if sy that Bay di$ froa iaitial recoSnition of godwill, defcrcd E liabilities tre not

rccogni:d.
Dcfcred H asts dc generallJ. recogni*d for a.ll dcductible teaporary difrerenccs to the cxtent it is probablc that tMbte p.o[b will bc availablc ogainst

which thos dcductiblc tcDporary diflcrence ffi bc udlized. In cas of tcmporar5r dillerenccs that di$ from initia.l recognition of agts or liabilitics in a

fmstion (othcr t}r6 busines combination) that a.ffect neither the t*able profit nor thc accounting profit, defered H asts tre not recogni4d.
Thc car4ring @ount of defmcd h asts is reviewcd at the cnd of erch reponing p€riod md reduccd to the efrent that it is no lonSer probablc that

sficicnt @blc proits will b€ availablc to allow thc b€nclib of pd or a.u of sch defcrcd E assB to b€ utiliad.
Defened H agE ed liabilities ile uca$red at thc E rabs that havc b€cn cnacted or subshtivcly enactcd by thc Balece Sheet datc md 8c cxpcctcd

to apply to tublc incoDe in the ycds in shich thos tcmporaf]t di.flercnces sc expectcd to be recovered or &ttlcd.

8l kovlrloo. Cortbrcnt LLbllltic. Ed Cc.tb{.nt Arotr
'lhe Coopoy rccognias provisions when a prc$nt obligation fiegal or constructivc) as a reult of a past cvent exists ud it is probablc that m oudlow of

reeurces mbodying GconoEic bcncfiB pill be rcquted to sftle such obligatioa ed tl.c mout of sch obligation ce bc reliably esimatcd. Wtren a

CoEpoy expecB provision to be reimbur*d, the rciEbursment is recognizcd 6 a $pilate ast only when the reiEbur$nent is virtually cerhin.
A di$lo$re for a contingent liability is Dade when there is a posibtc obl.igation or a presnt obligation that may, but probably will not require e oudlow of

tceuces eEbodying eonooic b€nefts or the mout of $ch obligation @ot b€ resurcd reliably. Whcn there is a posible obligation or a ptesnt

oblitation in respcct ofwhich likcthood ofoudlow ofresurccs cmbodying donoEic benefta is reaote, no provision or di*losrc is aade.

U Coh ud Coh EoulYdGltr
Castr md castt equivalcnt in tlte baldcc strcet coEpri$ cash at barks md on hmd md short-tem dcposits with m oridnal marurity of tluec Eonths or

lcs, which ile subject to a inMaterial risk of choges in value.

For thc purpos of tlre stateEent of cash floffi, cash md cash equivalcnts consi$ of castt @d shoft-tem dcposits, 6 dc6ncd above.

ll Borrh( cdt
Bonowing cos includes interest, Mortiatio! of mcillaly cosb incuned in connection with the frdgement of bonowings md exchug€ difi.rences (if oy)
sising froB foreign curcncy borowilgs to thc extent thcy de reSdded s e adjushcnt to the interest cost.

BorowinS costs, il ey, dtectly att ibuhble to the acquisition, construct-ion or production of m ast that nccesily b.[.es a $bshtial period of tiEe b

get rcady for iB intcndcd us or sle ue capitaliad, iI my. All other bonowing cosB dc cxpcnsd in rhe period in which thcy occur.

J) EEltt .ft.r R.E!th, d.to
Where evenb occuring after the Batmcc Sheet date providc evidence of conditions that existed at tl:e end of the reportiDg pcriod, the impact of such evenb

is adjusted within the limcial sbhcnts. Otheruie, evcnts aftcr the Ba.lance Sheet dab of matcrial sia or naturc dc only disloed,
U &EG.t nc@rth[

Opcrating $EEenb dc reported in a oamcr consiscnt eith drc inbmal rcporting provided b the Chief Opcrating Decision Maker (CODM) of the CoEPmy.

Thc CODM is rcsponsiblc for allocating rcsurces md as$sing p€rfommcc of thc opcrating $gmenb of thc Coopoy.
6 The coopmy's primary busines sgDents coEpri*s of multi level cd peking cu commcrcial codplex ed ph@acy busines ed

cenral clini@.I laboratory, The busines $EmenB havc bcen identficd in tine with IND AS 108 on Sepent Rcponing.

b SegEent Reporting of studa.lone linacia.ls tre reponcd in thc coneldated Enmcials of the pdent coEpey.

ll DmhaEr.h@:
Bsic cmings per shue is computed by dividing thc net proot or los for thc period attributable to ttre cquity strdeholdcrs of the CoEpmy by thc weighted

avcrage nutEr of cquity shdes outsteding during the p€riod. Thc wcightcd average nuEber of equity shqes outsmding durhg the pcriod ud for all

pcriods presnted is adju#d for €venb, sch N bonus shees, othcr th& the conversion of potential equity shdcs, that havc cheged the numbcr of equity

shdcs outstadint, without a conesponding chage in reeurces.
Diluted €ffiings per shse is computed by dividing t}le net prolit or loss for the period atributable to thc equity shdeholders of the CoEpmy dd weighted

avcrage nuber of cquity shdes considcrcd for deriving b*ic eminSs per equity shue md ale the weighted avcrage numbcr of equity shtrcs rhat could

havc bccn iscd upon conveEion of all dilutive poEntial cquity shaes. The dilutivc potential equity shaes re adjusled for thc preccds reccivablc had the

cquity strdes bcen actually isucd at fair value (i.c. tl.c avcragc Eukct valuc of the outshding equity shues),
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El Eneptloa.l ltear
During the ycd the compey hs no exceptional items,

!l trhEcld liltnEGnt.:
ll) fl!6cl.l AsGt

ll Clul0etlon
Tha @Ep@? clElfts ltr ,laucLl ilretr lE ths foltorla{ Ecaurcoeat cateEorlcr:
a) Tho$ memred at eoftied cost.
b) Tho* to be meaured $bsquently at fair value (either through other coDprehensive or tlEough sateEent of prolit ad Lo$), md

The clasification depends on the CoEpoy's busines model for Euaging the finmcial rets od the cortractual tems of the cash flows.

All findcial &B ile recognisd initialy at fair value, rmsction costs of finmcial ffits cffiied at fair value tlrrough tl.e Profrt md I-s de
expensd i! thc Stateaent of Profit md lrs,
Sub.equeat [csurcE.at
For purposs of subsquent EesureEent, finmcial asts ile clasfied in follosiag categories:
.l Flaocl.l .'ctr .t Eortlad m.t
Finacial a*b ile sbsquently meNred at uoftisd cost if the* Enmcial rets ae held vithin a busine$ aodel sith il objective to hold
thes aseb in order to collect confetual c€sh flows ed thc conEactual tems of the fmmcial as$t give ri* on specfied dates to c6h llows that
de elely pajments oI principal md inteaest on the principal @ount outstffding. Interest incoEe ftoa thee finmcial asts is included in finmce
incoae using the ellective intercst rate ("EIR') Bethod. Iapaiment gains or loss eising on thes ffiB de recogni*d in the StateEent of Profit
ud Los.

bl FlnEcLI .et at frlr nlu. thrcufh other @Epreh.Elr lE@E6
Fimcial assb te Eeasred at fair value ttEough other comprehensive incooe if the* fmmcial rets ae held wittrin a busines whoe objective

is achieved by botlt collecting conhactual cash llows md elling linmcial asts md the conkactual tems of the finmcial ast give ris on specifcd

dat€s to 6h 0ows that tre elely paJEcnts of principal md inbrest on t]le principal mount oubtmding MoveEents in the errying @ount ae
bken thtough OCI, except for t}le recognition of impaiment gains or loss, interest revenue md foreign exchmge gains ed loss which de
recognisd in the Stateeent of Profrt md IDs. In resped of equity investoents (other tha lor investaent in $bsididies tud asciates) which 6e
not held for trading, the ConPmy has made u irevo@ble election to pre*nt sub*queat chmges in the fair value of such instruments in OCl.

Such a election is oade by tie Compmy on & inmment by iostaMent b$is at the time of Eesition for existing equity inshmenb/ initia.l

reco8nition for new equity instruaents.

4l

cl FlnecLl *t .t f.lt yrluc thrcu{h prcflt or lor
Finmcial Nts tre mea$red at fair value tirouth profit or los unle$ it is mereured at @orti@d cost or at fair value through other
coEPtehensive incoae on initial recoSnition. The tlmsction cosE directly attributable to the acquisition of finocial assts at fail value tlEough
profit or los de iMediately recognisd i! stateEent of profit md los.
lap.hGnt of FlEEclsl Aget
In accotddce with ltrd AS 109, the Compuy applies the expected credit los ('EC[.:) model for DeasueEent md recognition of iapaiment los on

filocial asts dd credit risk exposures, Thc Coapmy follows 'sioplified approach' for recogaiEon of impaiment los allowmce on Eade

receivables. Sioplilied approach does aot require the Compdy to track chuges in credit risk. Rathe., it recogniss impairaent los allowmce basd

on lifetime ECL at each r€portilg date, right from its idtial recognition. For recognition of iDpaiment los on other linmcial 6ets md risk

exposure, tJre CoBPey detemines ttrat whethcr theac hs been a Material incree in tlle credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk hN lot

increed Materially, l2-Eonth ECL is u*d to provide for impaiment los. However, ilcredit risk hs incre@d Materially, lifetime ECL is ued. li in

a sbsquent period, credit quality of the ins"trument iEproves such that there is no longer a Mate.ial incree in credit risk since initial recognition,

then the entilr reverts to recognising impairoent lo$ allowmce bed on 12-oonth ECL. ECL is the dillerence between all contractual cash flows

that de due to the group in accordmce with the contract ild all th€ cash flows t]lat t}te entity expecE to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls).

o De-rc@altlon of Firucid Aset.r
The Compmy de-recognies a finmcial Net only when thc contractual rights to the cash flows AoE thc Nt expte, or it trmsfers the fnmcial

ast od ilbstmtially all risks dd rewdds of omership of the ast b uother entity. [f the Compmy neit]rer trasfe.s nor retains obstatially

all the risks ad rwads of omcrship md continues to conrol the rmsfered Nt, tlle CoDpoy recognias its retained interes io tlle assts od

u Nciated liability for @ounts it may have to pay. If the Compily retains $bstantially all the risks md rwdds of omership of a trusfened

fntucial asst, the CoBPmy continues to recognire tlle finmcial ast md ale aecogni*s a collateralizd borowing for the proceeds received.

tr ultv l!.tilpcrt ,And FlBuchl LLblllti.t
Fimcial liabilities od equity instruEents isue d by the Compoy ue clsilied aeording to tlle substance of the contractual udgeEents enteled
into ed t}le delnitions of a findcial liability ud m equity inskuEent.

Faultr lqtruEarts
An equity ins&uEe[t is my contract that eeidences a residua.l interest in tlle ffits of the CoEpay aJter deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
intuDents which de iwed for cash ile recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct isu€ costs. Equity ins@ments which de is$ed for
consideration other thm cash ile recorded at fair value ofthe equity instrument.

2l
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Ftaucld Lhbllttlq
ll Inltl.l rc@6ltlo! ud UesurcDc.t
Firucial liabilities re recognired iaitially at fair value ad in ce of borosing md payables, net of direcdy atuibuhbl€ cost'

2l Sul$aucat EGsurcacat
Findcial liabilities de $bsquenuy cmied at dortired cost using the ellective interest dethod, excePt for contingent consideratio! recognized in a

busines coabination which is subsquently Eesured at fair value throuth proEt or los For Eade md other Payables Baturing within one yed

froo ttre balmce sheet daE, the cdryinS @ounts aPproximate fair velue due to the short marrity of the* ins@E€uts'

3l D.-rc@dtio! of Flaecld Llsbultlo
Finmcial liabilities r" d"-.."og.i*d *hen the obligation specfied in the conract is di*haged, cmcelled or expired. when m existing fnucial

liability is repl,aced by oother fiom t.Ire me lender on sbtutially diff€rent tetus, or the tetus of m exstina liability de ubsmtially modfied'

sch o exchage or oodfication is treated N de-recognition of the original liability dd recognition of a new [ability. The ditrerence in thc req)ective

caqring mounts is recogni*d in the Shtement of Profit @d l-s'

4l Olbetth{ trl.Ecld Ltabilltle.
Finmcial asts md finacial liabilities ae olfet md the net dout is reported in t]re Baldce Sheet if there is a curently enforceable legal riSht to

ofr*t tl.e recogni*d uounts md there is d inbntion to sttle on a net bdis to reali$ the dsts md sttle the liabilities sioulheously'

tdp.trEoEt of ltoa-FllEcld lt .tr:
Th" co-p-y **s at each Balance sheet date whether there is oy indication that m ast, including intagible ast, Bay be impaired' It my

$ch indication exists, the coEpay estiEates the recoverable mount of the Nt. [f $ch recoverable @ount of t]re ast oi the recoverable

@ount of the c6h generating unit to which the ast belongs is les thm its carrying @ount, t}te car4ring mount is rcduced to its recoverable

@ouot. The teduction is t eated s m iEpaiment los md is rftognitd in the Proft md ['os Account'

nGc@nblc @ourt L dGtcrla.d:
- In ca* of m individual ast, at the hiSher of the asts'fair value les cost to sll md value in u*; od
- ln ce of cash generating unit (A group of rets that tenerat€s identified, independent cash flows), at the higher o[ cash Senerating uEit's fair

value lcs cost to sll md value In u*.
In assing value in u*, the estiEated future cash fiows de di$owted to their pre*lt valu€ using Pre-w di$ount rate that refl€cB curent

6dket ass$ents of the tioe value of Eoney md risk specfied to the asl In deteEining faL value les cost to sll, recent Etrket rusction

de taken into ecount. If no ilch Emsction cm be identfied, m aPPropriate valuation model is usd.

IEpaiment loss of continung opetations, including iEpaiment on inventories, ae recognied in the Shtement of Profit md l'ss, except for

properties previously revalued pith the revaluation taken to oCI. For uch properties, the impaiEent is recogni$d in ocl up to the Mount of my

previous revaluation. Whcn the compmy considers that th6c ile no realistic prosp€cts of recovery of the ast, the relevMt mounts de Miften oIL

If the mount of impaiment los sub$quently decre@s 6d the decree o be related objectively to ff event ocorring a.fter thc iEpaiEent was

recogtrisd, then the previously recogni*d inpaiment tos is rever$d through the StateEent of Profit dd Ips'

EEDloYaa BcEafit
short-ter obllstlont :'
Liabilities for wages md sluies, itcluding non monebry benefts that tr€ expected to bc *ttled wholly sithin 12 months after rhe end of the period

in which t1,e employees render the related strice ue recognised in respect of employees' *trices up to t}re end of the relDrting period md ae

aedured at the @ounts exPected to be paid when the tiabilities ae *ttled'
LaE EacEhEcat
Thc cost of strort te@ coEpensted ab*nces is provided for bNd on estimates. The compmy pre*nts tlE entire leave as a curent liability in the

balece sheet, since it does not have as unconditional right to defer its sttlement fo, 12 Eonths after the reporting date'

ll] Pot+EploYucrt obllatloil ]
ThG CoopuY oD.ntc. thG follorh[ Ddt .aDlovEclt *hGEGt:

a) Dcined benefit plan uch o gratuity; ad
b) Defined contribution Plan such as provident fund'

Gntultv obllatioil
The liability or ast recognisd in the baluce sheet in respect of defiled beneft gratuity Ples is the preedt value of the desned benefit obligation at the

end of t].e reporting period les the fair value of plm asts. The defined benefit obligation is calculated mually by actudies using the Projected unit credit

aethod.

Thc pre*nt value of the delined benefit obligation is detemined by di*ounting the estiEated future cash oudlows by reference b mdket yields at the end

of the reporting period on Sovement bonds that have tems aPproxiEating to rhe tems of the rel,ated obliSation.

The net inter€st cost is calcutrated by applying the di$ount ratc to the net balance of the deined benefit obligation md tlt€ fair value of ple Nts This cost

is included in employee benefit exp€n*- in the SateEent of Profit md Los'
Re.e*reoent gains md loss dising Iroa experience adjustments ed chdges in actutrial assumPtions ae recogni*d in the period in which they

occur, dfuectly in other comprehensive income, Ttrey ue included in retained emings in t]:e statement of chmges in equity md in ttre balmce sheet'

Pprldeit Furd
RetireEent b€nefit in the fom of provident fund is a defined contribution *heEe. The compMy hN no obligation, other thil the contibution Payable to the

provident fund. conributions d€ Eade to provident fund in Ind.ia for employees 6 per regulations. The contributions de Bade to registered provident fund

administered by the govemment. The coDpdy recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund sheme o m expen$, when m eEployee renders the

related $Nice. If the contribuhon payable to the sheme for sryice received before the balarce sheet date exceeds the conribution already paid, the defrcit

payable to the sheme is recotnizd 6 a liabiUty afEr dcductint thc conribution already paid. If thc corribution arready paid cxceeds thc conbibutioa due

for *rvices received before tlre balmce sheet date, then excess is recognizd s m ret'

P}

0

bl



SpuL fdl ud Pullog PriEtG Llalted
I{otd to tlaucld lt.tcocnt. for thc y.u cndcd 31.t fuch 2025

ql larcttE.nt ln Prcpcttlo i-
Property that is held for long-terE rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, md that is not occupied by t}le Compmy, is cLasified as investment

property. Inv€shent property is mereured at its cost, including relat€d fdsction cos md where aPPlieble bonowing cosb les depreciation md
impaiment if my.

rl !bssEcee!-9!cs!t
GraB froE the govement ue recogni*d at their fair v6luc where there is reNnable asurmce tlEt t}le gret wiU be received md the Compmy will
coEply with all athched conditions,
Govemment greB relating to the purche of property, plilt md equipEent de inctuded in capital re*oe s deferred income md de credited to Proft

md l,os on a straight - line basis over the remaining period of the project md presnted within other incoEe.

3l
InvestmenB in subsididies, joint ventures dd assciates ue recogni*d at cost 6 per Ind AS 27. Except where investments accounted for at cos shall be

accounted for in accordace with Ind AS lO5, Non-curent Asts Held for Sale md Di*ontinued operations, when they ile clasilied s held for sle.

tl Borcrln( co.t !
Borowiog cosb directly attribuhble to the acquisition, @nst uction or production of m ast that necesily hkes a ubsmtial period of tiEe to gct ready
for iE intended us d pd of tlre cost of Nt. Nl other borosing cos de expen*s in the period in which th€y occur. Boro*in8 costs coosist of intere$
md oth€r costs that 6 entity incurs in comection witlt t}re bonowing of funds.

ul hEltorlo r
Inventories ae valued at cost or net realisble va.lue whichever is lower. Cost is uived using Erecific batch co$ing module. Cost coEPri* of all the cost of
purche ed other co* incured in bringiag the inventories to presnt location md condifion. Due allowmce is estioated md made for defective md
obslete iteBs, whel€vet necegq/.

Y} IE!!E!g
lnterest incoEe is recognired on accrual basis

x



Spark Matl and Parking Private Limited
Notes to flnancial statements for the year ended 31st March 2o25

2 ProPertY, Plant and equlPment
(t in lakhs I

Plant and
Equipments

Furniture
And Fixtures

Office Equipments Total
Partlculars

Gross Carrying Value

As at 1st Aprll 2024

Additions on account of
BTA/Slump sale

Additions
Disposals/Sale

As at 31st March 2O25

67.43 t4.95 181.35 263.74

67.43 14.95 181.35 263.74

Gross Carrying Value

As at 1st Apnl2023
Additlons on account of

Additions
Disposals/Sale

As at 31st lMarcln2024

65.88

i.55

t4.22

o.7+

L79.L7

2.t8

259.27

+.47

67.43 L4.95 181.35 263.74

Accumulated DePreciation
As at lst Aprll 2024

Charge for the year
BTA/Slump sale

Additions
Disposals/Sale

As at 31st March 2025

26.28

6.8i

9.83

t.48

t65.49

5.86

20L.6L

14.15

33.09 LL.32 171.35 2L5.76

Accumulated DePreciation
As at 1st Apnl2023
Charge fior the year

Additions
Disposals/Sale

As at 31st I|ttr,arcn.2O24

Net Carrying Value
As at 3lst March 2025

As at 31st March2024

19.09

7.t9

8.r7

t.66

152.85

L2.64

180.12

2L.49

26.28 9.83 L66.+9 20L.61

34.34 3.64 10.oo +7.98

41.15 5.L2 15.86 62.L3



Spark Mall and Parklag Hvate Ltmtted
Notes to flnanclal statements for the year erded 31st March 2O25

3 Other Intanglble Assets t in laths )

Computer Software
General Arraagement

Drawlag
Total

Partlculars Rlgbts*

Gross Carying Value
As at lst Aptil2024
Addlttons on account of

BTA/Slump sale

Additions
Disposals/Sale'

As at 31st March 2O25

20,633.48

16.69

425.23 581.14 2r,639.84

16.69

20.650.L7 425.23 581.14 21,656.53

Gross Carrylng Value
As at I st April 2023

Addltlons oa account of
Additions
Disposals/Sale

As at 31st Marcb 2o24

20,624.43

4.65

425.23 581.14 2t,635.t9

o.u:

20,633.48 425.25 581.14 21,699.84

Accumulated Arnortlzatlon
As at lst April2O24
Charge for the year

BTA/Slump sale

Additions
Disposals/Sale

As at 31st Nlarch 2025

5,023.56

st2.89

L78.49

15.62

235.77

22.40

5,438.22

550.91

5,535.45 194.51 254.fl 5,989.13

Accuraulated Amortlzatloa
As at lst April2023
Charge for the ycar

BTA/Slump sale

Additions
Disposals/Sale

As at 31st Nlarch 2o24

4,5tt.L6

5t2.40

t62.16

16.73

213.36

22.40

4,886.68

551.54

5,O23.56 178.89 235.77 5,438.22

Net Carrylng Value
As at 31st March 2O25
As at 31st Nlarch 2024

15,tlg.72 230.71 322.97 ts,667.4{t

15,609.92 246.33 345.37 16,2O1.62

Note:

* Rights includes, Capital expenditure made for Cinema Construction which is not put to use as on Mar 25 due to non receipt of permission

to operate. However Infrastructural part is completely ready to use & operate, hence we have charged depreciation on the same.

** Tangible equipment used in the parking facility which are necessarily required to be handed over after completion of the contract to MCD

are classified as intangibles.



SpuL UaIl end Putdag Prtnte Ltrlted
Itlote! to tbucLl rtateEcEt! fos tte yeu eadcd 31tt Mucb 2025

4

Partlcultr 3l.t Uuch 2A25 3l*f.sch2O24

IIInle.LhrI ItIafatfrI
Othcr Flpucl.l Atret lNoa cuentl

el Noa Cmelt llvcltEe8t3 :

hvatEcEt Ecsued at co.t:
A. hvcrtneat ln equl9 httruDclt

tlv6t8cnt b cubsldar5r comPuler
UEqloted
No. of Shiles NIL (24065) of pil va.lue of Rs' 10 each

t) Medisedch Lifesciences Pvt Ltd -Equity Shffi
lnvestment in Equity shiles of subidiary Compmy - I00 %

holding
No. of Shiles 10,000 ( 10,0oo) of pa value of Rs.10 each

1.00 1.00

34,462.11 25,539.25
34..163.11 25,s4o.25

Note: The piltnership fim has not accounted for shde in profit/ (toss) to the respective capital account md it is shown as sepmte line item in other

curent assts due to which there is dilference in carrying va-tue of investment md ligures reported below.

Nme of Partnership Fim: SAN Finmce Corpomtion

bl Ot.hq Flauclal Asetr:
Seculty Dcpo.lt wlt! related Partlcr

Interest free security deposit to related party (VREMPL) 1,000.00 1,000.00

B.
rl

hvc.tEelt h othos l8true[tl:
Irve.tEcrt lE Put[q.hlp flr4
Sm Finance Corpomtion
Totql

Secultlr Depodt rlth otterr
lndmprashta Gas Ltd-Security Deposit
Tata Power Delhi Distribution -Security Deposit Ele

Total

7.97
22.43

7.97
22.43

4

,.. ,i
i,r r

I

Sr.no Partners Name Partners CaPital
(cument) (Rs in

Lacs)

Partners Capital
(Fixed) (Rs in Lacsl

Shm of each Partner Shtre in Profit/(loss)

1l ,JAY SANCHETI (5,136.8C 0.14 260/0 .49

2l ANAND SANCHETI (23,2O4.791 0.14 260/0

3l MAFIARASHTRA EI{VIRO POWER LIMITED 10,305.47 0.05 10, 317.22

4l PARAMVEER SANCHSII (3.4 17.83) 0.o9 170/o 570.99

5l AKSHAY SANCHRTI (2,995.641 o.09 lTYo 570.99

6l SPARK MALL & PARKING PRIVATE LIMITED 34,476.Oi 0.03 50/o 166.96

Sr.no Piltners Nme Partners Capital
(cunent) (Rs in

Lacs)

Partners Capital
(Fixed) (Rs in Lacs)

Shae of each Partner Shae in Profit/(loss)

1l AJAY SANCHETI (4,92s.s6l' 0.14 260/0 1927.541

2t ANAND SANCHEfl l2o,ago.t7 0.14 260/0 1927.s4].

3) MAHARASHTRA ENVIRO POWER LIMITED 10.304.72 0.0s tov" {343.s3)

4l SANCHETI (3,725.541 0.09 17vo (618.36)

st AKSHAY SANCHETI (3.1 13.421 0.09 17Yo {618.36)

6) SPARM MALL & PARKING PRTVATE LIMITED 25,720.14 o.03 svo 080.81)

856.49



Sput fall erd PuHrg fHntc LtEtted
I{ot6 to IhreLl .ttt@cttr fq tte ycu caded 3lrt tuch 2O2E

I{ote: 5

li
i;

Ar Act Ar per Co. Act DmqeEcG Tq R.tG

-- t.l 

-
Business

,7 o.25

1778.7O)
41.85 0. l0 4.35

leave
o.25

(3.76 10.9sfor
o.25 {9.7tI

r 18. l8l 0.13ocI

lnss on sale of SPAI,IV shiles- Long tem

Irss on of SPAIW tem (Net
tem

o.25:.pttrl Los

tor AY 2024-25
(s5.1s

0.16

for AY

AY
201

7-18
1

t75.9 L75.

o.25
0.2s
o.25
0.25
0.25

2021-22
12,633.731

(2,633.73]|

o.25 (662.86)2022-23
I 0.25 (363. l9

20 I5- t6
r,187.93) (2,187.93t o.25 t550.66)

(1, o.25
(1,584.2 1) o.25 (398.71
t,407.t61 (1,407.161 0.25 (354. l5l

(L |55.07) o.25
I,r25.36) (1,r25.361 o.25 (283.231

(rl o.25
(92s.13

o.25 232.a4
(E25.36t o.25

0.25

314.51

(rl

5.570.O8

(cl tdl lO = ldFlel

13.o94_O I o.2scunentyeu profit/to@
N per IT

o.25
138.57t

Ils

(ss. ls)
1613.07)
(292.gBt

18.601

195.64)
138.O9t

l1-443.O5

(86.151

(l,823.75)
(459.00)

l1-5A4.21

(1,2s5.071
13l5 aar

(l,o20.95t
21J22-23

lg25_ l3t
(825.361

173S.60) 173S.60r

t4-447 -63t

DTAEfet



6parl Mall ud Parklag Hutc LlEltGd
l{ot6 to MBEclaI atatcnents for tho year eaded 31rt Useh 2O25

Prrtlculu

6 Othcr I{on CureEt A!3etl
Admnccr other thu capltal advuce3:
Prepaid Exlrnses

Total

7sl Curent IlvertEeEt
hvqtEert ncuurod at falr valuc:
IEvcstEert i! equlty lEtroEett

Quoted
Measured at Fair Value through Other ComDrehensive
Incomc
Listed Equity Shares
Measured at Cost
Unlisted Equity Shiles of mother compmy -
*Spmv Medisearch Lifesciences Private Limited

A.

No. of Shres 265650 ( 265650) of Par value of Rs.1 each

TotaI

Addtttonal Dlrclqu€:
Aggregate Amount of Cost of Quoted lnvestment
Aggregate Carrying Amount of Quoted lnvestment
Market Value of Quoted investrnent
Aggregate Carrying Amount of Unquoted Investment

70,3.47 I,Ot3.2t

31rt Much 2025 31rt Urrch 20{14

{ < In lethr I ( ( Ir talh. I

7.O5

7

5.96

697.5t

345.77

697.51

L24.14
5.96
5.96

697.51

185. t8
385.77
345.77
697.51

rlloto: The selling price of Spanv Medisearch Lifesciences shares will be committed by Mr. Bhaskarrao who is
tl)e promoter of KIMS. However, as on date following m the conversion scenrios communicated.

Scelerl@

ConaltEcrt from KIMS (PER SIIAREI

Salc vslue comEltEcat frcm KIUS per thre

Per shre (II{RI

Scenrio I @10% IRR 337

Scenrio lI @55 EBITDA x 12 times

Scenario III @60 EBITDA x 12.5 times 429

Scenrio IV @65 EBITDA x I2.5 times 465

Scenrio V @70 EBITDA x 12.5 times+15 Cr for 49%o stake s18

Scenario VI @75 EBITDA x 12.5 times+ls Cr for 49yo stake 554
Scenario VII @8O EBITDA x 12.99 times 594



Spark Mall and ParLlng Private Limlted
Notes to tlnancial stateEents for the year eaded 31st March 2o25

(Al

Detatls of Curreat Iavestments

Investments in Quoted Equtty Shares (fair value through
other coaprehenslve lncome, fully paid up)

(i)AJR INFRAAND TOLLING LIMITED
UAgSgrO G4698970) Eqrirg shares of { 2 eachfullg paid

Cost of Investment - l2I.7O (L2l.7Ol
Fair Market Value of Investment - O.OO (293-98l.

( Itr laths )

As at As at
31st March 2O25 3lst March 20.24

293.98

Rs.O.O3 0.03

16.18

0.06 0.06

3t.79

o.oo o.oo

5.87 6.51

0.00 0.00

22.75

0.01 0.01

74.4+

5.96 3E5.77

697.5L 697.5L

(ii) HINDUSTAN CONSTRUCTION CO. LTD.

lOO (1OO) Eqnitg shares of 7 1 eachfullg paid

Cost of Investment - O.Ol (O.Ol)

Fair Market Value of Investment - O.O3 (0.03)

(iii) rDBI BANK LIMITED#
O (2OOOO) Eqtitg shares of < 1O eachfullg pai.d

Cost of Investment - 0 (8.08)

Fair Market Value of Investment - 0.OO (16.18)

(iv) IGLPATARU PROJECTS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
6 (6) EWit! shares of { 2 eachfullg paid

Cost of Investment - 0.02 (0.02)

Fair Market Value of Investment - 0.06 (0.06)

(v)JUST DIAL LIMITED#

P96q Eryitg shares of { 10 eachfullg paid

Cost of Investment - 0 (35.52)

Fair Market Value of Investment - 0.00 (3L.7el

(vi) MCNALLY BHAI]AT ENGINEERING COMPAI{Y LIMITED
5 (5) Eq.tifu sLtares of < 10 eachfullg paid

Cost of Investment - O.OO (O.OO)

Fair Market Value of Investment - 0.00 (0.00)

(vii)NCC LIMITED
28OO (2800) Eqttitg stwres of ? 2 eachfullg paid

Cost of Investment - 2.37 (2.371

Fair Market Value of Investment - 5.87 (6.51)

(viii) PATEL ENGINEERING LIMITED
5 (5) Equitg shares of ? 1 eachfullg paid

Cost of Investment - 0.OO (0.00)

Fair Market Value of Investment - 0.00 (0.00)

(x) PTC INDIA LIMITED
O (12250) Bqitg shares o/ { 1O eachfullg paid

Cost of Investment - 0 (9.67)

Fair Market Value of Investment - 0.00 (22.751

(xiil SADBHAV ENGG
50 (50) Eqitg slnres of { 1 eachfullg paid

Cost of Investment - O.O4 (0.04)

Fair Market Value of Investment - O.O1 (0.01)

(xiii) SOBHA LIMITED#
O (IOOO) Equitg shares of < 1O eachfullg paid

Cost of Investment - O (7.771

Fair Market Value of Investment - O.O0

Total
(r4.44],

Investments in Equtty lastrumeats in other
Companies (valued at cost, fully patd up)

(i) Spanv Medisearch Lifesciences Private Limited
265650(265650)WiW shares of 71 eachfullg paid
Total

(Bt

697.51 697.51



Spuk Uall and Parktng Hrnte Llmlted
Ilotea to flnmclal rtatemeats for the yeu eaded 31rt [arch 2O25

31st [arch
20/25

31st March
2024Partlculars

7 (bl Trade Rccelvables
Unsecured, coalldered good

i) Related Party
ii) Others
Unsecured, consldered dlsPuted
i) Others
Lees: Provision for bad & doubtful
debts

Total

Ar at 3lrt tuch 2O25
Tndc Recelwbler acheduls

Ar at 31st M.tcD.20,24
Trade Recclwblo aglag rchedule

t In lakhc tltl

61.69

(s.47)

(s.47],

30r.61
255.19

(e.2sl

(9.2el-

61.69 556.80

Partlcular
Out3tudlEg fot fotlowlag portodr fron dqtc of truactloE*

Total
Lcs thu 6

Eorthr
6 Eorthr to I

vcat
l-2ycan 2-3 ycu 3

Rclated: (i)UndisPuted Trade
receivables - considered
good

(ii) Disputed Tmde
Receivables considered
gmd

OtheE:
(i)Undisputed Trade
receivables - considered good

66.76 o.40 67.16

(ii) Disputed Tmde
Receivables considered good

Total 66-76 o.4() 67.L6

Ic8:Provision for bad & doubtful debts s.47

Totsl 66.76 o.4.o 61.69

t ID la.Lh!

{ h lath.

Partlculm
for datc of truactlosr

TotdLes thas 6
nonths

6 noathr to 1

Year
L-2yean 2-3 yean [orc tbu 3

YCU
Related:
(i)Undisputed Trade
receivables - considered good

30 1. 15 o.46 301.61

(ii) Disputed Tmde
Receivables considered good

Others:
(i)Undisputed Tmde

receivables - considered good
262.23 2.25 264.$

(ii) Disputed Tmde
Receivables considered good

Total 563.3r o.46 2.25 566.10

L€ss:Provision for bad & doubtful debts 7.O4 2.25 9.29

Total 570.42 o.46 4.50 ss6.Eo

-.;r.f:_:--.-
-.,r'I ,t ,. - a-".' . ,

,,1|:



SpuL [all ud P.rH8g ftlmtG LlEttcd
Ifotc3 to Esucld rt.tcEcntr for the ycu cadcd 3ltt umh 2ql5

7cl

Partlculu

Cuh ud Cuh Eoulvdcatr

Cash in hand

Balances wit-I. Bank in Curent Account
cheques in Hand

TotaI

Note
Cash md Bank balmce are denominated and hetd in Indian rupee s

7dl Lag lcureatl
(Uuccrred, couldctcd goodf
Ipu to Rcleted Pertlo
SMS Limited
SMS Vidhyut Pvt Ltd
veetrag Hospitality Pvt Ltd
Medistrch Lifesciences Pvt Ltd
Fire Arcor lnfrastructuie Pvt Ltd
SMS Envoclean Ltd.
(Xhcr thu Rehtcd Pertlq
SMG Realities Pvt Ltd
GHR Education Foundation Smiety
Kingsway Institute of Health Sciences
Spanv Medisearch Lifesciences Pvt Ltd

Total

rl

uf

31rt f,reh 20{15 313t Ureh 20i14

Itlnlatbl (rIahlhtl

15.41 12.82

LL4.O4
o.04

9.35
0.07

t29.44 22.25

t,613.79
9,572.14

177 .7 t
13.95
68.72

400.31

7 37A.49
143.56

13.60

37.37

275.52
3.72

835.89

66.42
246.O7

3.72
7a9.65

t2,961.75 r,67t.EE

1

2

3

I{ote:
[rms are non-derivatjve financia.t assts which Senemte a lxed interest income for the Company.

The carrying value may be alfected by changes in the credit risk of the counterparties.
Curent loms to related parties pertain to funds advanced for business purpos.
The Compmy has not received my fund from any person(sl or entity(ies), including foreign entities ('Funding
parqf) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or othemiw) tiat the Company shall direcuy or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entjties identified in any mmner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (Ultimate Beneliciaries); or provide my gutrantee, s€curity or tie like on behatf of the Ultimate
Beneficiilies.

DetalL of Lou to RcLted P.ttl€' th.t uc:
(el rcpayeblc oq dcnud or

rlthout tcru or

Ilnc of Bofficr Aaout of lou
outrt.EdIEg

Ar st 31rt [arch 2025
Promoter
Directors
KMPs

Related Parties 11,846.62
A. at 313t Ulmh2o24
Promoter
Directors
KMPs

Related Parties 7,573.O2

Ar at 31rt [uch 2O25

A! at 31rt Mmh 2024

TJTIDG of Borcwer Rcletloa wtth Partlz Rrtc of latcst

RGlatcd Partlo
SMS Limited Holding Company 14.OOo/"

SMS Vidhyut Pvt Ltd Subsidiary of Holding 7.OQo/o

Veetrag Hospitality Pr/t Ltd Other Related Party 15.OO%

Mediseach Lifesciences Pvt Ltd Own Subsidiary 0.00o/o

Fire Arcor Infrastructure Pvt Ltd Step down associate ol l6.OOo/o

SMS Envocleil Ltd. Steo down subsidiary r a.ooo/o

TJn e of BoEowcr RGl.ttor wtth Prrtlr R.tc of lrteHt
Related Pqrtlc.

SMS Vidhyut Pvt Ltd
Subsidiary of Holding

Company 7.OOo/o

Veetrag Hospitality Pvt Ltd Other Related ParW I5.00o/o

Spanv Mediseach Lifesciences Pvt Ltd other Related Parw 9.300/"

Kingsway Institute of Healttr Sciences Oth€r Related Party 15.00%

..._ 
.r_j. ll ..

.r "1 ' r 
_ 

*.
:l-':. - -- -- '



Spark Mall aad Parktng Hvate Ltmtted
lfotcs to fi'ianclal stateocata for the year eaded 31st March 2O25

Partlculars

7 el Other Flnanclal A$ets (Currentl
From Others

Water, PNG & Electricity charges recoverable from tenants
Amount due from NBFC toward TDS
Total

Cuireat Tax A$ets liletl
TCS Receivable
TDS/TCS Receivable - fY 23-24
TDS/TCS Receivable - FY 24.25
Total

Other Curreat Assets
Goods & Services Tax receivable
Advanccs other thea capltal advances:
Prepaid Expenses
Stalf Advance
Imprest A/c
TotaI

31st March 2O25 31st farch 2024
( t Ir lakhs I ( t In la.khs I

6.34

273.42

22.74

139.54
279.76 162.2A

o.t4

74.22

o.2r
145.70

74.96 145.90

9
o.0l

10.35
o.o2
o.62

L2.64

16.32

0.03
0.55

tl.oo 29.54

rn



Spert llrll ud Pertbg Pdrt. LlDlt d
iloto to firucbl ftha.aB ,or thc ycr Gndcil 3l* t.rch 2ql5

IO EquftyAhec.pfrd
Autho.lui! .h.E
ISOO0OOO (3lst Mdch 2024: 15000000) equity slrcs Ps
Value ofllo/- eeh
26000000 (3lst Mm,r2O24:26000000) preference shars Pd
Valuc oftlo/- ceh

F4ufty .hrE
At the bcgiming of tbe yed
Ised duing thc yetr
Oubhdhg .t thc Grd of tho ycu

DddL of .h@holdGE holdlrg DoF the 596 .tG h thc ospuy

Equrty 3h.E
SMS LiEited
Ayodhya Gorakhpu SMS Toll hrt Ltd (now Eerged with SMS
Lioited)

d. Dstdt.ofsh.gHGldbyHoldtn!CoaEoy

Equlty .h.E

SMS Lioit€d

3ld XNh 2ql5 3l.t UNh 2024

@
1,500.oo

2,600.00

1,500.oo

2,600.oo

LsGd, .uh.crlt d Ed tully pdd-up

I 1929676 (3 I s Mdch 2O24t 119296761 eqtt;ty shes Pd
Vslue ofll0/- eeh 1,t92.97 L,192,97

Totd r,L92.97 I,192.97

lfd6!
T.@/rlghb .tuched b cqulqr .hrg :

The coEPdy hE only one clas of equity shes hryiqg pe value of < l0 pcr slre. Eeh holder of Equity shdes is cntiued to onc vote pcr slrm. The
dividcnd ploposd by DirectoF is sbject to the approval ofshaeholdeB in the ensuing Anaual ccneral Meeting.

In thc event .of liquidation of the coEpey , the holdeF of equity sl,@s will be entitled b rcccivc effiining asts of thc coapmy, e.ftcr disEibution of
prefe.ential @oEt. Thc diffibution will be in prcportion to the Eo, of equity shdes held by the shaeholdcr.

b. RGondlldlo! of th. atEb.r of .hG oubtEdhg rt tho toahalal Ed d tlG 6!ii of th. DGrtod

3ld X.Eh 2(,il5 31.t l[ch 2orl4

t,19,29,676 t,192.97 1,19,29,676 t,t92.97

I,t9,29,676 1,192.97 rttg'29'576 I,t92.9?

8Id f&L 2025 3lf fet 2024

v,6 5a,45,540 49"/o

lo@c

31.1 MNh 2(l,l5 31.t [eh 20:14

I{o. % holdtrg b th€
cls

% holdlng h th€
cL{Ifo.

1,t9,29,676 tooP/o 60,84,136 5 19ro

ttt9,29,676 lqy% 60,E4,r36 s l7c

PmEotGr.h@holdlng
Shes held by ppDotorr at the €nd of tlE yed

For ttG

SL No. Premotd I|EC
Ar on 3l.t ll.fh 2025 Ar oD 3l* X.Eh 2()24

ilo. ofgblE Yo ofbtel th.B % ch.lic durhi
th. y.g llo. ofsbc oftdd Sh.Ig cbugG

dudng tto tcu
I Shri Ajay Shaldikud Sdche ti (NoEinee of SMS Ltd) 3 oo/o ov" 3 e/o @/o
2 Shri Andd Sha.ldikEtr Secheu (NoEinee of SMS Ltd)

Shri P@veer Sdcheti (NoEin.e of SMS Ltd)
3

2

@/o u/o 3

2

O"/o

@/o

e/o

4 StEi Akshay Smcheti (Noainee of SMS Ltd) 2 Oo/o @/o 2 @/o @/o
5 Shri Nhbhay S@cheti (NoEinee of SMS Ltd) I V/o @/o e/o wo
6 Shri l(ard Secheti (NoEin€e of SMS Ltd) I e/o e/o @/o e/o
7 SMS Limied l,19,29,664 to0o/o 96"/o 60,a4,t26 5t @/o
a Ayodhya Gorakhpu SMS Tolls Prive LiEited (Now knom 6

SMS Ltd. efter Eerger)
@/" to@ 58,45,540 490/" e/"

Totd r,t9,29$76 taxv. @" t,19,29,676 t(x)% @"

cadci! 31.t XNh 2024

SE No. Prem&E lf@o
A. o! 31.t MNh 2024

No. ofShrg % of totil Sh.g
I Shri Ajry ShalaikMe Secheti (No@inee of SMS Ltd) 3 e/o @/o

Shd Aned Shaktikuffi Stucheti (NoEin€e ofSMS Ltd) 3 @/o e/o
3 Shri Pmveer Sdcheti (Noain€e of SMS Ltd) U/o av"
4 Shri Akshay Socheti (Noainee of SMS Ltd) 2 OYo O"/o

5 SMS Linited 60.44.126 51"/o ovo
6 Ayodhya Gorakhpu SMS Tolls Privab Limitcd (Now lhom tr

sMs Ltd.)
5E,45,540 49Yo avo

Tdd 1,t9,29,676 t(xr% w"
oe&s proEoter N defined in the CoEpmies Act, 2013.

.!:

il;,,

Ifo. %holdhtlathc 
No. lr.holdlaltrttG

I,19,29,676 tO04/o 6O,E4,136 51o/o

t -19-29-646 tw- t.t9.29.676

3ld U.Eh m2S

-r! ,/ ,.., - .

t'.i'

V/o V/o e/"



Sparh fdl and PerHng Hvate Llnlted
lYoter to flaaaclal lt.tencntr for the ycar eaded 3ht farch 2O25

Ithlakhr!
1o(af I[strurnentt ln rrature

Ternr of Irrue of CCD- Scrler A aad Serlet B
Origina[y CCD (Compulsorily Convertible Debentures) were issued to evinos builders ltd. under subscription agreement dated
0311112023 but the same were sold by the party to Indiabulls Commercial Credit Ltd on 30th March 2O24.

The Said debentures are compulsory convertible in nature. The CCDs have a face value of INR 10,00,000 (Indian Rupees Ten takh
Only).

Debentures are issued in two tranches of 160O & 1250 each having par value of Rs 1O lakhs each.

The Investee Company has issued Series A- 1,600 Compulsory Convertible Debentures, denominated with par value of INR I0,O0,OOO
(Rupees Ten lakh Only) through private placement basis to tlle lnvestor on the Allotment date i.e. April 2a , 2O23. The investor has t]re
riSht to convert the CCD into such number of fully paid-up Equity Shares representing 24.99yo of the Equity Share capital of the
Issuer on Fully Diluted Basis.

The Investee Company has issued Series B - 1,250 Compulsory Convertible Debentures, denominated with par value of INR 10,00,000
(Rupees Ten Lakh Only) through private pliacement basis. The investor has the right to convert the CCD into such number of fully paid.
up Equity Shares representing 10.0 1% of the Equity Share capital of the Issuer on Fully Diluted Basis

The CCDs shall not bear any interest.
The CCDs shall be convertible in the following manner

(i) The CCD issued shall be converted into such number of fully paid-up Equity Shares representing 24.99 Vo of the Equity Share
capital of t}re Issuer on Fully Diluted Basis post conversion of the CCDs, at any time after 2 months from subscription, during the
tenor of CCD for issue of 1600 debentures

(ii) The CCDs shall be converted into Equity Shares of the Issuer in the manner contemplated hereinabove, on the date falling one
Business Day prior to the expiry of 60 (Sixty) months from the allotment date of CCDS, in the event the holder of the CCDs does not
exercise the right to convert prior to such date.

iii) The CCDs shall be converted into such number of fully paid up equity shares representing 10.01% of equity share capital of the
iisuer on fully diluted basis post conversion of the CCDs, at any time after 53 (ffty three) months from subscription, during the tenor
of CCDs.

iv) Further, after taking into consideration the Series A CCDs investment (INR 16000 lacs) and the CCDs investment (INR 12500 lacs)
the investor shall be entitled for an aggregate fully paid-up Equity Shares representing 357o of these Equity Share capital of the Issuer
on Fully Diluted Basis.

The holder of the CCDs, the CCDs and the Equity Shares to be allotted pursuant to the conversion of CCDs shall be freely transferable

The Company has/ shall have the authority under the Articles of Association to issue and allot such number of the Equity Shares to
eflect the conversion of the CCDs.

For issuance of CCDs Veetrag Exploration and Minerals Private limited has given corporate guarantee of INR 12500 lacs
Terns of Iguc of CCD- Serlet C

Debenturesareissuedinsingletrancheof 1800 havingparvalueofRsl0 lakhseach.
The Investee Company has issued 1 ,800 Compulsory Convertible Debentures, denominated with par value of INR 10,00,000 (Rupees
Ten Lakh Only) through private placement basis. The investor has the right to convert the CCD into such number of fully paid-up
Equity Shares representing l4o/o of the Equity Share capital of the Issuer on Fully Diluted Basis

The Tenure of the CCDs shall be 45 (forty five) montls from the date of allotment subject to early conversion by the holder of such
CCDs.

The CCDs shall not bear any interest.
The CCDs shall be convertible in the following manner
i) At any time, after 12 months of the CCDS flNR 18000 lacs) subscription, during the tenor of CCDs, the investor has the right to
convert tlre CCD into such number of fully paid-up Equity Shares representing l4o/o of r}le Equity Share capital of the Issuer on Fully
Diluted Basis.

ii) Further, after taking into consideration the Series A CCDs investment (lNR f6000 lacs), the Series B CCDs investment oNR 12500
lacs) and the Series C CCDs investment of (INR 18OOO lacs) the investor shall be entitled for not more than an aggregate fully paid-up
Equity Shares representing 497o of these Equity Share capital of the Issuer on Fully Diluted Basis

Corporate Guarantee to be issued by Veet Rag Exploration & Minerals Private Limited (Group entity of Issuer) atainst the tctal
outstanding upto Rs 30500 lacs (i.e 12500 lacs and 18000 lacs) to the Investor ("Corporate Guarantee'). This Corporate guarantee of

a) Conpulrorlly Colvertlble Debenturcr Bdaace er at
3r.os.2u24

Chaages ln
conpulrorlly
coavertlble

debeatures due
to prlor perlod

etrot3

Rertated
belaace ac at
3t.o,3.2o.24

Clcnget la
c$puborily
coDvcrtiblc
debeaturer
durlug the

crmeat ved

Bdeacc as at
31.03.2(}25

As gt 31.o,3.2ol24

Samman Capital Limited (Formerely known as
Indiabulls Commercial Credit Limited) - 4650
Compulsory convertible debentures of par value
ofRs. lO lakhs each

28,500.00 28,500.OO r8,ooo 46,500

TOTAL 28500.(x) o.oo 2E500.OO lt,qx) 46,50()

Veet Rag Exploration & Minerals Private Limited shall be limited to the CCD's of INR 30500 lacs only

'i )

)



Spark Mall and Parklng Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2o25

11 Other EqultY

Retalned Earnlngs

Surplus / (Deficit) as per the last frnancial statements

Prior Period Errors
Restated Opening balance

Add: profit / (loss) for the Year
Add: Transfer from OCI due to sale

Closing Balance

Securlties prcmium account
Balance as per the last financial statements

Closing Balance

Other Comprehensive Income
Remeasurement Defined Benefrt Plan

Balance as per the last hnancial statements
Additions during the year

Sub-total (I)

Gain/(Loss) on recognition on investment in equity
instrument at Fair Value

Balance as per the last linancial statements

Additions during the year
*Less: transfer to retained earning due to sale

Sub-total (il)
Closing Balance

Total

3lst March 2O25 31st March 2O24

( t In lakhs I ( t In laths )

(16,832.11) (13,036.80)

(16,832.10)
(3,360.87)

Rs.59.15

(13,036.80)
(3,795.31)

12o,133.821 16,832.1U

Rs.5,318.03 5318.O3

5,318.03 5318.O3

Rs.5.85

(4.s7]'
r.28

t97.O3
(2+O.7Ol

59.15
LO2.82l

r.78
4.O7

5.85

118.31

78.72

197.O3
(101.54) 2o2.44

1L4,9L7.3+l (11,311.2O1

i



Spdk f.ll ard P.rtlna PdEt6 LlEtted
lloter to flE.lchl.t teE€nt. fos the yes endsd Slst Uuch 2025

12 Noa ctEcot borowl8S.

Itl Sccucd
Tcro lear

llu UqrccuGd

MEPL - 10000000 shdes of pil value of Rs.10 each,
issued at a premium of Rs.40 each.

AABS - 12133260 shiles of pdva.lue of Rs.10 each
issued at a premium ofRs,sl eah.

Total

3lrt Uqch 2O25 3l.t Udch 2024
( t In Lelh.l ( t Ir Lelh.l

6,447.+2

5,000.00

7,401.29

4,746.O2

5,O00.00

7,401.29

19,2AA.7t 21,t47.3r

U u&Etr&e&reee!-Ehre-e!p&r!
.. The sid preference shaes shall carrJr preferential rights to receive dividend at the mte of 129lo per amum in the

year in which the comp@y declaes dividend md shall be Non Cumuldtiue Optiomllg Conuettible Redeerubte

Preferen@ Share. The Dividend in the yeil in which shiles @ allotted will be in proportion to the period in respect

ofwhich such shiles remain paid provided that dividend is decliled.
b. Such Preference Shaes Shall be nomencLature as " l2yo Optionaly Convertible Non Cumulative Redeemable

Preference Share" (OCNCRPS).

c. The OCNCRPS shall be conv€rtible at the option ofthe shileholder as well as the issuer. Each OCNCRPS shdl be

convertible after a period of 120 months from the date ofallotment into one Fuly paid Equitjr Share ofRs. 10/- each

of the compmy at pu u tl.e option of OCNCRPS Shreholders by giving one month's notice,
d. The said preGrence shues shall be redeemable at the opuon of the compey at uy time before 20 ycils. Tems of

Redemption ue m follows:
i, OCNCRPS ile redeemable at the isue price of Rs. 50 at my time before the expiq. of 36 months from the date of

allotment.
ii. OCNCRPS m redeemable at Rs. 63 at my time alter 36 months but before the cxpiry of 60 months from ttre date of

a.llotment.
in. OCNCRPS ue redeemable at Rs. 74 at ily time alter expiry of 60 months from the date of allotment but before end

of 120 months from the date of allotment.
iv. OCNCRPS are redeemable at Rs. 1 10 at any time after expiry of I20 months from the date of a-llotment but bcfore

end of 18O months from the date of allotment.
v. OCNCRPS re redeemable at Rs. l7O at my time after qpiry of 18O months from the date of allotment but before

end of 235 montis from the dato of allotment.
vi. OCNCRPS ffi redeemable at Rs. 270 at my time alter expiry of 235 months from the date of allotment but before

end of 24O months from the date of allotnent.
vi. OCNCRPS 4e redeemable at Rs, 270 at my time after expiry of 235 months from the date of allotment but beforc

end of240 months from the date ofallotment.
.. Such preferencc shiles shall carrJr prcferential right for redemption of the capital on the winding up the compuy.
f, The voting rights on such Preference Shiles sha.ll be in accordmce with the provisions of $ction 47 oI the

Compilies Act, 2013, whenever applicable.

tr) AABS - Prefereacc Shrrc Caottal

a. The Bid preference shaes shall caror preferential rights to receive dividend at the rate of 129lo per unum itr the
year in which the compmy declaes dividend md shall be Non Cumulatire Optionallg Canwrtible Redeemble
Preferen@ Share. The Dividend in the yeu in which shues ue allotted will be in proportion to the period in respect
ofwhich such shues remain paid provided that dividend is declaed.

b. Such Preference Shues Shall be nomenclature as " 129lo Optionalty Convertible Non Cumulauve Redeemable

PreNrence Shile" (OCNCRPS)

c. The OCNCRPS shall be convertible at the option of the shdeholder as well as the isuer. Each OCNCRPS shall be
convertible after a period of 120 months from the date of allotment into one FuUy paid Equity Shre of Rs. l0/- each
of the compmy at pu u the option of OCNCRPS Shaeholders by giving one month's notice.

, The uid preference shares shall be redeemable at the option of the compmy at my time before 20 yem, Tems of
-' Redemption ae as follows:

i. OCNCRPS are redeemable at the issue price of Rs. 61 at uy time before the expiry of 36 months from the date of
allotment,

. . OCNCRPS ile redeemable at Rs. 77 at ny tine alter 36 months but before the expiry of 60 months from the date ofrr' alotment.
iii. OCNCRPS ile redeemable at Rs. 90 at my time alter expiry of 6O months from the date of allotment but before end

of 120 months from the date ofallotment.
iv. OCNCRPS ae redeemablc at Rs. 130 at my time after expiry of 120 months from the date of allotment but before

end of 180 months from the date of allotment,
v. OCNCRPS ilc redeemable at Rs. 200 at uy time alter expiry of l8O months from the date of allotment but before

end of 235 months from the date of allotment.
vi. OCNCRPS are redeemable at Rs. 330 at my time alter expiry of 235 months from the date of allotment but before

end of 24O months from the date of allotment.
e. Such preference shares shall carrjr preferential right for redemption ofthe epital on the winding up the compmy.

f. Thc voting rights on such Preference Shares shall be in accordmce with the provisions of sction 47 of the
Companies Act, 2013, whenever applicable.

8' Redemption shall be in accordmce with Section 55 of the Act, out of prolits avaitable for distribution as dividend or
out of proceeds ofa fresh issue of shiles made for the purpose of redemption.

Nole : The @mlnn h6 re@iued. letlere Jrcm MEPL and AABS stipulating that tl@ in@slot uants to @n,ert tl@se
shdres into equitA and. hre not opted. fot rcdemption. Due to uhich the ampang h6 not mdde prcuision fot premium
pagable on redemption



Aprt Mall aad putlag prlwte Llmltcd
I[otc3 to ll.traEcdel rtsteEcEts for tho year eadcd 3lct ![uch 2O2S

Ditclorurc pcft.lnllg to soored loaan
Il Detalb of Sccrrrltler etrd Teras of RepevE€pt

IldL Bult! Flasaco LlEttod

Note : HLAPNAG0O49f 3l4 (9f Cr) Iran a/c is an Over Draft facility for 3 years.

8r lto.
Date of

Agreemcnt/
SanctloE

Dstc of
Eaturlty AgrceEc[t lfo. Maturtty perlod w.r.t. Belsace

Shcct d.te
Elfectlve REtc of lEtcrest

oh
I 28lOsl2o2o

13 t4 I
2

3

4

06/09 /2027 osl tt/2033 HLLd,NAG00502377 (2s Cr) 8 Years 7 montls
7 5 months

13.600/o

17.OOo/o

5 t9l12l20te
osloT /2032
os I tt/ 2025

HLAPNAG0049I826 [40 cr)
HLLANAG00490094 (80 cr) 0 years 7 months

17.ooo/o

185 I

17.OOo/o

':.

,i



SparL tau Ed PerldDg Pdvate Ltmlted
I[otca to flnanclal stateEoat. for tbo year erdcd gl.t [erch 2OIl5

Dkclcure pcrtelDtrg to ac@rcd loc.[t
If Dctglls of So{riltlcr and Tems of Rcpamcat

IIf Detall. of SGcutttle3

Itrl

Loqu A/c Propertler Dctallt
Pehalwan Dhaba

SMS Ltd
Paul

BSS Associatcs
No M-7 Green New Delhi Anand Sancheti
Dhantoli

Pvt Ltd

Club
Bharti Abhay Sancheti+ Savita Ajay Sancheti + Shruti Sancheti,

Abhay Sancheti(HuF)+ Ajay Sancheti(HuF) + Anand
Sancheti(HUF)

No | -21/23/28 Nandura Shaktikumar Sancheti/ Anand Sancheti/ Abhay Sancheti/ Ajay
Sancheti

Shashwat Paramveer Sancheti/ Akshay Sancheti/ Bharti Sancheti
Sakar

Savita
Hindustan Amd Sancheti

HL.{PNAG0049 13 la (9 1 Cr)
HLAPNAG00491851 (35 cr)
HLAPNAG0049I826 (4O cr)
HLLANAG0049OO94 (80 cr)

P
Savita Sarlcheti

Spark Mall, Delhi Mall & Parking Ltd

GuaraEteo byPcrrond GueraatGc glvea by
13ra (9r Cr)-* Anand Shaktikumar Sancheti,Ajay

Shaltikumar Saacheti, Savita Ajay
Sancheti, Vljaya Shaktikumar
Sancheti, Shruti Anand Sancheti,
Bharti Abhay Sancheti, Akshay Abhay
Sanched Paramveer Abhay Sancheti

Ayodhya Gorakhpur SMS
Tolls Private limited

(2s Cr) Anand Shaktiktmar Sancheti
rSsr (35 Anand Shaktikumar Sancheti
1826 (40 Anand Shaktikumar Sancheti

HLLANAG00490O94 (80 Anand Shaktikumar Sancheti,Ajay
Shaktikumar Sancheti,Nirbhay Ajay
Sancheti, Abhay Harakchand
Sancheti, Shruti Anand Sancheti,
Bharati Abhay Sancheti, Viiaya
Shaktikumar Smcheti.

Propertle: Ouned By

AgreeEcrt lfo.

it



Spark MalI and Parkiag Prlvate Llmlted
Notes to linanclal stateneats for the year ended 31st March 2O25

Particulars

13 Other Flnanclal Ltablity- Non current
Security Deposit from Tenant against Rent
Total

14 Non-CurrentProvlslons
Provision for employee benefits:
Provision for GratuiQr

Totd

15 Curreat Borrowlags
(tl Secured
al India Bulls Housing Finance Ltd

bl Current maturltles of long term borrowlngs:
t) From flaanclal lnstitutlons

cl Interest accrued but not due oa borrowlngs

(til Unsecured
al Loan Repayable on Demaad from Related Partles

i) Veetrag exploration & Minerals F/t Ltd
ii) SMS Envocare Ltd
iii) SMS Waluj CEPT Rrt Ltd
iv) SMS Water Grace Enviroprotect Rrt Ltd
v) SMS Water Grace Mediwaste Management Rrt Ltd

31st March 2025 31st March 2024

( t In lakhs I ( ( In lakhs I

5s.59 112.59
55.59 112.59

39.09 28.26
39.09 28.26

10,098.00

5,691.45

197.58

324.O3
365.38
226.55
24932

516.64
5s.32

8,959.81

3,261.27

229.57

38.22
3,343.55

345. l9
379.95
269.89

500.00

Loan Rcpayable on Demand from Others
i) Badjate Stock & Shares h/t Ltd
ii)SMS Tolls and Developers Ltd.
Total 17,327.45

Note:

The loan from related party- SMS Envocare Ltd is interest bearing @ LOo/o and repayable on demand, Veetrag
exploration and minerals @ 7 o/o , SMS Wafuj CEPT Rrt Ltd @ 6.5yo , SMS Watergrace Enviroprotect R/t. Ltd. @ loo/o
, SMS Water Grace Mediwaste Management Rrt. Ltd. @ LOo/o.

L7 764.27

'1 r-l--.:',:'-:'.11:iiii: 1 
l' 
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Spark Mall and Parklag Prlvate Llmlted
Notes to linancial statemeats for the year ended 31st March 2025

Partlculars

16 Trade PaYables

Others
- Dues to MSME
- Dues to others
- Dues to Related party

Note: -

3lst March 2O25 31st March 2O24

( t In lakhs ) ( t In lakhs )

26.67
6.57

42.99

40.42
t48.62

8.64

Total ?6'n ,,,. ,-.=.-== ru1
DuestosuppliersregisteredunderMicro,SmallandMedium@ct,2oo6(,MSMEDActJand
the disclosure pursuant to the said MSMED Act are as follows:

DT'ES TO MICRO AND SMATL ENTERPRISES

1) the principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at
the end ofeach accountingYear; 26.67 40.42

2) the interest due on the principal amount remaining unpaid
to any supplier at the end of each accounting year

3) Principal amounts paid to suppliers registered under the
MSMED Act, beyond the apPointed
day during the year

4) Interest paid, under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers
registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day
during the year

s) Interest due and payable for the period delay in making
payment beyond the appointed day during the year, other

6) the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the
end of each accounting year;

7l the amount of further interest remaining due and payable
even in the succeeding years,



Spark Mall and Parkiag Private Limited
Notes to flnaacial stateBents for the year ended 31st March 2O25

As at 31st March 2025
Trade Payables Agetng schedule

As at 3lst Match2024
Trade Payables Ageing schedule

( t In lakhs I

Particulars Outstandiag for following periods from date of
transactions*

Total

Less than 1

year
1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3

ycars

(i)MSME 26.67 26.67

(ii)Others +7.40 2.t5 49.56

(iii) Disputed dues - MSME

(iv) Disputed dues - Others

Total 74.O7 2.15 76.22

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from date of
traasactions*

Total

Less than 1

yeaf
1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3

years

(i)MSME 40.42 40.42

(ii)Others 156.13 156.13

(iii) Disputed dues - MSME

(iv) Disputed dues - Others 1.13 1.13

Total L97.68 L97.68

ti
I'
ll

:,.i; i .,
.il.
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Spark Mall and Parklng Prlvate Limtted
Notes to Ilnaaclal statements fot the year eaded 31st March 2o25

Partlculars

L7 Other Flnancial Liabtlities (Currentf

Credit Balance of Current A/c due to Reconciliation

Security Deposit Against Parking Scheme

Security Deposit From Chaitanya Construction

Salary Payable

Bonus PaYable

Payable Against DrPenses

Job Work Charges PaYable

Audit Fee PaYable

Other Payables

Expenses paYable

Creditor for CaPltal Goods :

Shriaan Business Solution Rrt Ltd

Ingenious Power and Green Envirotech Solutions

Total

18 Other Current Ltabillttes
Statutory Dues PaYable

TDS /TCS payable

Provident Fund paYable

Goods and Service Tax

Employees State Insurance Corporation Payable

Revenue Recelved in Advaace:
Advance received for advertising space

Current Liabtlities
Advance from Tenants
Advance from customers (Mining Business)

Total

19 Curreat Provislons
Provlslon for employee benefrts:
Provision for Leave Encashment
Provision for GratuitY

Total

31st March 2025 31et Uarch 2O24

( ( Itr lakhs I ( ( In lakhs )

10.59
31.48
11.36
3.76

881.74
10.51

125.00
1 1.84

3.94

o.42
1.69

19.31
18.43

80.55

0.53
0.45

19.31

9.46

80.55
1.23

L68.72 1153.43

93.93
1.60

8.08
o.o2

106.31
1.53

205.75
0.16

4.40

1.88

2.87

1.43

7.8t
112.E8 322.90

3.45
o.52

3.50
0.58

3.97 4.OE

'ii;'
t t:.1':..J



Spark Matl and Parkiag Prlvate Llmlted
Notes to flnanclal statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

Partlcurars 31st March 2o25 31st March 2O24

( ( In lakhs ) ( ( In lalhs I

29 Reveaue from oPeratlons:
Sale ofgoods:
a) Trading of goods - (Mineral Trading Activity)

Less: Discount on Sales

Net Sales

Sale ofservices:
a) Rent from Shops
b) Rent for Advertising SPace

d) Common Area Maintenance Charges Shops
e) Parking Collection:

i) Monthly Pass Parking
ii) Regular Pass Parking

f) Consultancy Fees

g) Commission Charges
Total

2L Other Income:
Scrap SaIe

Dividend
Interest Income:

a) Interest on Delay Pa5rment from Suppliers

b) Interest on Income Tax Refund

e) Interest on Loans Given

d) Interest from Security Deposit witJl Tata Power
Recovery of Card Lost Charges
Balances Written off
Miscellaneous Income
Share in profit of partnership firm
Total

1,376.99
7.t2

31.49

1,369.E6

161.06
13.86
43.82

129.06

33.81
869.85

31.49

405.54
14.36

72.25

133.56

30.74
919.00
214,87

2,62L.9L 1,821.81

Note:

1 The company operates in one geographical location and its entire revenue is generated from India

2 Amount from revenue from operation does not include goods and service tax.

^ Revenue from operations is recognized after reduction ofvolume discount, price variation & any otJrer
o benefit given to customer direcfly or indirectly.

In view of upcoming diversification and growth initiatives, tJre company is systematically vacating its
4 current rental premises.

0.06
o.22
1.25

0.30

t.79
7.23

859.92

1.94

0.69
1.34

o.24
166.96

1.38

8.58
359.39

1.91

0.53

1,O4O.16 373.5s

\
..''''.....-



Spark Mall aad Parking Prlvate Ltmtted
Ilotes to linanclal statements for the year ended 31st March 2O2S

partlculars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024

22 Purchases
Purchases

23 Changes in Inventorles ofStock-in-trade
Flnished Goods
Opening Stock
Less: Closing Stock

24 Dlrect Drpenses
Consultancy Expenses
Electricity Exlrenses
Maintenance Charges for Propert5z Management
PNG Charges
Security Expenses
Insurance Expenses
Labour expenses
Water Charges
Jobwork Expenses- Contractual Staff Salary
Annual Maintenance Charge
Property Tax
Consumables
Total

25 Employee Beneflt E:(penses
Salarles & trIages:
a) Salary
b) Bonus
c) Gratuity*
d) Leave Encashment
Cootrlbution to provldent and other funds:
a) Provident Fund Employer's Contribution
b) Employees State Insurance Employer's Contribution
c) Provident fund Admin charges
StaIIWelfare Expenses
Performance Incentive

( t In lakhs ) ( t In lakhs I

1,174.62 26.69
1,174.62 26.69

243.25
tL4.4t
72.97

o.o7
50.82

6.88

55.2s
1o8.72

72.92

28.72
6.57

30. l5
12.68

50.56
L6.32

0.05
28.O4

6.87
37.69
12.68

8.85
566.51 397.95

157.15
9.68
7.12

9.28
0.92
o.37
0.61

137.51

9.50
6.63
0.40

7.67
1.48

0.60
1.28

2.64
Total

Note!-

Since the Gratuity is unfunded the same is clubbed under head Salaries & Wages as per the guidance
note on Division-Il INDAS of Schedule III to the companies act, 2013.

185.12 167.7L

i,i
.i,

:t:
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Spark Mall and Parllng Prlvate Limited
Notes to linanclal statetnents for the year ended 31st March 2O25

pargculars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024

( { In lakhs I ( < Ia laths I

26 Flnaace Costs
a) Financial Institutions
b) Interest on Unsecured loan
e) Stamp duty charges on issue ofdebentures
f) Commission on corporate guarantee

Interest oD Statutory Dues
a) Tax Deduction/ Collection at Source
b) Goods & Services Tax

Total

27 Depreclatlon aad amortlsation expenseg

Depreciation of property, plant & equipment
Arnortisation of intangible assets
Total

2A Other E:rpenses

Repair & Maintenance

- Other Repairs & Maintenance
- for Building
- Machinery

Rent E:cpenses

Accounts Written oIf
Printing & Stationery
GST expenses

Miscellaneous expenses
Registar of Companies Filling Charges-ROC

Office Expenses
Travelling and Conveyance Expenses

Guest House OtJrer Expenses

Legal Expenses

Telephone & Internet Expenses

Festival & Decoration Exp.

Audit Expenses :-
Statutory Audit Expenses
Internal & GST Audit Expenses

Licence Fess
POS , Paytm & Other Charges
Insurance Errpenses

Parking Expense

Annual Custody Charges
Share Investment Expenses
Penalty on GST

Computer Expenses

Business Promotion & Gift Expenses
Switch charges
Freight
Tender Expenses

Testing & Designing Charges
Subscription & Membership Fee

Stamp duty charges
Prior Period Expenses
Petrol diesel e>lpenses

Loss on F\rtures/Options

Share in loss ofpartnership firm
Inspection Charges
Profession Tax
Bank Charges

Foreign Currency Exchage Gain/ Loss
TDS Written olf
Total

3,261.21
500.61

0.91
359.90

3,777.27
583.60

1.44

125.00

o.2t
0.01

o.o1
o.42

4,123.O7 4,4E7.54

14.15
550.91

21.49
551.54

565.()5 s73.03

1.75

1.25
2.75
o.22

0.36
1.30

1.62

o.62
4.24
1.08

6.67

2.2t
3.01

2.68

0.50

0.15

8.01

11.53

1.48

0. l0
9.42
1.03

0.81

(0.0o)

0.48
7.Ot
1.43

5.22

3.30
2.O5

3.12

1.85
1.09

15.18

2.36

0.40
o.L7

o.03
0.10
0.35
o.03

0.99
0.80

1.62
1.25

15.46

1.90

0.89
0.94

0.46
o.27
0.01

0.09

0.34
o.o4
1.43

o.85

2.21

180.93

o. l3

1.34

t.t2

o.t4
0.03
o.27
o.o2
1.06

55.95 265.56



Spark Mall ard Parking Prirrate Limited
Ilotes to flaanclal statetrcnts for the year ended 31st March 2O25

partlculara 31st March 2O25 31st March 2024

29 Brceptlonal ltems (IYet of taxesf

Ioss on sale of spanv medisearch lifescience pvt. Ltd. shares
Total

gO EarnlngPet Share (EPSI

Profit/Loss after tax
Lcss: Dividends on convertible preference share and tax

thereon
lYet proflt / (lossl for calculatlon of baelc EPS

Wetghted average number of equlty shares ln
calculatlng Dtluted EPS

1L929676 Shares (31 March 2024: LL929676) fuuity
shares Par Value of Rs. 1O/- Each
Earnlng Per Equlty Shares:

(a) Basic (in <)

(b)Diluted (in <)

( { In laLhs ) ( < In lakhs I

716.90
----Tt6,p,6

(3,360.93) (3,794.O3l,

13r36().931 lur'ry+.uu,

119.30 l19.30

(28.17l.
(28.t7l.

(31.80)
(31.80)



Spark Malt aEd Parklng Prlvate Llmlted
Notes to standalone Flnanclal statcments for the y6ar elrded oa 31st fiarch, 2025

3l Related Party Tsa.trsactlors

l. Relatlonshlps lRelated Party relatloachlps are as ldentlfled by tho CotnPanyl.

al

bl rl Personnel of Roporting Eatlty

cl

Ul Key Uanageueat Personnel of

of

1. SMS

20.Os.24l

5. Bhupesh Moon- Additional Director (appointed on2O.O5.24l

Director (resigned on

Secretary

Kumar - CFO & Whole Time 4.1. Pranav

Shruti Kishor Zullarwar - 6. Thakur - CFO on 2O.05.

Rajesh kumar Gupta - Director

till 19.05.24 later on appointed as Managing
from 20.05.25

Shri. Paramveer A. Sancheti - Whole Time Director

Shri. Nirbhay A. Sancheti -Whole Time Director

Shri. Ramachandra Rao Kasaraneni - Whole-time director

7. Shri. Hemant Kumar Lodha - Non Executive Director

8. Shri. Ajay Kumar Lakhotia - lndependent Director (Completion

tenure from 30.03.2025)

9. Shri. Anil Kumar Jha - lndependent Director (Appointed from

07l%l2024l
10. Shri. Rajesh Kumar Gupta - CFO

11. Ms. Smita Pankaj Agarkar - CS

Shri. Akshay A. Sancheti - Whole Time Director

From

1. Shri. Anand S. Sancheti -Managing Director

2. Shri. Dilip B. Surana - Whole Time Director

SMS Hazardous Waste Management Pvt. Ltd

SMS Envocare Limited

SMS Taxi Cabs Pvt. Ltd.

SMS Vidyut Pvt. Ltd.

SMS-AABS lndia Tollways Private Limited

SMS Waste Management Pvt. Ltd.

PT. SMS Minerals lnternational

SMS lnfolink Pvt. Ltd.

3.

9. SMS Mining Limited

1o.SMSL Ketki MDO Project Limited

5.

6.

7.

dl Own Subsldlary Companles
1. Medisearch Life Sciences Rrt. Ltd

ofel

Envoclean Private Limited & SMS Watergrace BMW Private Limited)

5. SMS Watergrace Enviroprotect Private Limited Subsidiary of Procohat technologies Pvt, Ltd. :

7. Envotech Waste Management Limited (Not a step down 1. Ansilbyte Technologies Private Limited (Wholly owned Subsidiary)

EnviroprotectWasteManagementLimited(Underprocess 2. lnfiventSolutionsTechnologiesPrivateLimited
strike off)
Ponda Envocare Limited

Limited

of SMS Envocare Limited

from 20.03.2025)

sMs Greentech Private Limited

Nilawars Watergrace Waste Management Private Limited

Western lnteBrated Waste Management Facility Private

Subsidiaryof SMS lnfolink Pvt. [td. :

1. Procohat technoloBies Pvt. Ltd.SMS Envoclean Pvt. Ltd.

SMS Water Grace BMW Pvt. Ltd

Maharashtra Enviro Power Ltd.

Butibori CETP Private Limited

SMS Waluj CETP Private Limited

2nd layer subsidiary of SMSL:

Subsidiaryof SMS Envoclean Pvt. [td. :

1. Passco environmental solutions pvt ltd (100% holding through

1. SMS Water Grace Mediwaste Management Private

imited



Spark Mall aad Parlrtag Prlvate Llmltcd
Notc! to Sts.Edeloae Flnaaclal Stetcmcnt! for thc year ended on 31rt March, 2O25

31 Relatcd Party Transactloar

0 Areocletee of

gf Stcp-dowa Assoclatc ofHoldlag Company
Associates of SMS Vidhyut Private Llmlted :

1. Fire Arcor lnfrastructure Private Limited (Arcor lnfraventures Private Limited merge with Fire Arcor lnfrastructure Private Limited

w.e.f 01-04-2023)

hf Jolat Veature of

U Othcr releted of

2. SMS AAMW Tollways Put. LtdI. RCCL Infrastructure Ltd.
of StS Llalted :

1. SMS lnfrastructure Ltd. & D. Thakkar Construction Pvt. Ltd. 11. SMSL-SRRCIPL ( J V )

12.SMSrr-MBPr (JV)

13. Meghe SMS Health Sciences Consortium (SPV)

14. AGrPL-SMSrr pV)

15.Sanbro Corporation (Partnership Firm)

10.GDCL-SMStL J.V

2.SMS lnfrastructure Ltd - Aarti lnfra-Projects Pvt. Ltd. J.V,

lnfrastructure Ltd. Shreenath Enterprises J.V

.Shaktikumar M. Sancheti Ltd. & S N Thakkar Construction

Ltd. JV

Envo Ltd. ln consortium with SMS lnfrastructure Ltd.

sMsrL Krco (Jv)

sMsrL (JV)

9.SMSr L- M BP L-BRAPT (JV)

16. Saket - SMSIL (JV)

17. SRRCTPL-SMSL (J V )
18. SRRCIPt-SMSL (JV)-Mahabubnagar

19. SMSL-MBPL JV Durg-package-A

21. Karan Anand Sancheti

22. Mrs. Savita Ajay Sancheti

23. Smt. Vuaya Sancheti

24. Mrs. Shruti Anand Sancheti

25. Mrs. Shreya Akshay Sancheti

26. KPANV Ventures LLP

27. SPANV Enterprises

28. Abhaykumar Ajaykumar Agricultural

29. Ajay S Sancheti

30. AjayS Sancheti-HuF

31. Varun A Sancheti

32. Rashi V Sancheti

33. S.M. Sancheti-HUF

34. Abhay H Sancheti-HUF

35. Anand S Sancheti HUF

36. Dilip B Surana HUF

37. Kavita D Surana

38. Shreya Dilip Surana

39. Sakshi Dilip Surana

1. Breakvelop Private Limited

San Commercials Pvt. Ltd.

Mountain Private Limited

Smt. Bharati Sancheti

Oracity life sciences LLP

SMS Multi Objective Organisation

Atul Multi Objective Organisation

Valencia Constructions hn. Ltd.

6. Veet Rag Exploration & Minerals Pvt. ttd.
7. Veet Rag Hospitality Pvt. Ltd,

10. San Finance Corporation

11. Sanson Developers

12. KPANV Mines and Mineral LLP

Best Power Plus Private Limited

Kingsway Foundation

Pinnacle

BSS Associates

17. Mrs. Raveena Nirbhay Sancheti

18. Trishala Anand Sancheti

19. Mrs. Kavita Paramveer Sancheti

I
a



Spdt U.ll rad P.rlln! Prlhtc LlElted
I[ote. to fl!.Eclal.t teEeat. for tho y.d endcd 31rt ![EGh 2025

P.rtle. rr Purchaae of
S.Plco./

Goodr

Salo of
SeFlcG./c

oodr

AdE!cc
R.c.lv.d

aSalnat gorL

OthGr
TnnBctlo!

(rccGlvGd)

()th€t
TltrBctloE

( P.ld I
RaEurentloE

AEouEt
RGc.lved .galn.t
a6rYlc.r/ Gooda

PryE.nt
lfildo for
SorYlce./

Good.

hterett
IIcoEo

dulEt thG
90ar

Iat.r.rt
EaIrcEtc

dulng th.
veal

Lma/Rop.yE.nt
Rccclvcd duhg

tho yoc

L6o
Glv.n/RGpald

Iruhg th€
y.d

Outrtiadhg
BaLncGa

lscludcd h
ascta

Out.t ndlng
Brhacor

lacluded ta
ll.bllltc.

AI Holdln{ CouD.nv !

SMS Limited It6.51 l|.42 !l{,.55 10,:,08.rr5 lt,ra3.l2 1,613.79
23-24 4.74 438.42 o.37 74.42 196.20 to,o22.s7 1o 036.99 301.1s

Bl Sub.t.ntlal lrtcrert , (Xher tL.n Holdhg Col
10,184.63 L47.@

Ayodhya Gorakhpur SMS ToU B/t Ltd
24-25
23-24

c)
ILy M.negcEGDt Poroanet ofReportlag Eatlty
& P.reEt Co!

Pranav Akhileshw Kumar 24-25 28.24
23-24

Anand Smcheti 2+25
23-2+ 0.51

Akshay Smcheti 24-23
23-2+ 0.34

Paramveer Sancheti 24-25
23-24 0.34

PradJrumna Pamjape 24-25
23-24 0.06

Shruti Zullryar 24-25 3.40
23-24 3.2L

Dl Other RelEted P.rtv:

KPANV Ventures LLP 24-25
23-2+ 67.74

Veetrag Hospitality Rrt Ltd 24-25 22.56 16 11 ?7 70 177 _77
2J-21 0.12 1.01 12.r7 90.89 143.56

Vectrag Explomtion & Minerals hrt Ltd 24-23 3_O99_62 1.886.20 1A )7 30.03
23-2+ 26.69 31.49 369.03 369.03 743.22

Sm Finilce Corporation 24-25 5,500.00 14,255.90 u,295.75
23-2+ 8,598.22 3431E.40 25,720.74

Karm Anmd Smcheti 24-25 48.00 47.52 12.96
23-24 51.84 43.20 8.64

Kingsmy Foundation 24-25 0.58 0.s8
23-24

6AS2-29 160.69 t4 4.018.84 3m-06 76-6 2S-1S-m q.arl.a a.2a.s7e-22 /169.r0
olEt V€[ture o OED'!Y sMs ,tElted

AAMW Tollways hrt. Ltd. 24-25 o.46
23-24 046

Malmshtra Enviro Power Ltd. 5.000.00
23-2+ 5,000.00

SMS AABS Pvt Ltd. 7 AOt.29
2J-2+ 7,40L.29

SMS VIDTM]I 24-25 545.04 it46.00 2.093.61 9.572.r4
23-24 296.74 3744.24 7,374.49

SMS Envocm 350.03 170.00 3513.55
23-24 t75.74 2,820.4A 2,420.48 3,343.55

SMS Water Grace Mediwaste Management Frt Ltd 24-25 21.S9 289.32
2J-2+ 14.89 270.OO 15.00 269.89

SMS Wate Gmce Enviroprotect Pvt Ltd. 24-25 18.44 170.O0 225.55
23-24 19.95 370.00 10.(x) 379.9S

SMS Waluj CEPr P!t. Ltd. 22.41 365.3E
23-24 20.46 :t45.19

SMS Envoclem Ltd
z3-24 :i.l



SpuL f.ll ud P.sEag PrlEt. LlEltod
llot.. to flE..cl.l .t.t.D.at. for thc y.s GEdcd 3l.t Uach 2025
Rclatcd Prrty TnaEctloa.

rl
1. Arcor lnfraventures PriEta Limitcd 24-23 31.36 6A_72

23-2q 8.72
GI

1. Medisearch Llfe Sciences Pvt. Ltd 24-25 0.34 1a 95

23-2q o.05 10.40 13.60

2.Kingsuy lnstitutc of Hcalth Scicnccs Rrt. Ltd 24-25 3.72
z3-2+ 73.47

?ril1l?ltlr,lT?tj lTtlrta: a?t E l FYI.it;TtTEaJ r {-l

!t?I:mfi El rlEfdrl;lilrilErE:Frr:l a,',|.l I I.trT



SpsL I.[ Ed Pulht Pdnt. Llalt.d
trota to fbEcl.l .t.tGEGEt for th. t u €nd.d 31.t luch 2025

Ifot.! 32

I Coltbrclt Ll.blllty.CoatlEEcEt ArBt t CoEEltEGnt
tbh6

Ar .t 31.t IEch,
202023

42.12 42.t2

5.00

Totd 
'2.12 

47.12
Thccompmyhc'ec€ivednoticcfroENDMcdeEmdingPropertyHn".zze.s+@PreviousyedRs.

93.61 Ld(lrs) on pdkinS trea for the p€riod 01.04.2014 to 2018-19. Compey haye tonc to Hon'blc SupreEe Court on this ise, OutcoDe of cag

cmnot be predicted teliably at this point of tih€. However, during the yca sprcEe court ordered to pay principal portion of liability for filing furtl€r

Petition md accordingly the coEpuy had paid Rs 187 Iakhs being principal @ount, balarce lntcrest & Pcnatty is still contingent in natue.

tLl.€
Pstlcul6 A. .t 3l.t Xuch,

202J
,4, rt 3l.t IucL,

2024

a) Audit Fees [Ex4uding T*es) 0.50 o.99

loploE bCr.llt cbllntloa -
Cntultr obllr.tioE

A. AaoEEt b tb. Bdu6 6het I lq lrq
P.rtlal6 li .t 31.t I@h,

1023
A. rt 3ld Isct,

mra

Presnt Value of Benefit Obligation as at the end of thc yea 39.61 24,E4

Net Obligation 39.61 2E.84

ll.t (Ll.bltttl/Aet R.@galed h tLc BdE6 th6t 39.61 24.a1

Io@EGlt lE PIE Arst od PLr LLbllltlq
Thqe ae no Plan Asts ud Liabilties sinc. thc obligation is not fundcd.

AEourt rc@oLod lE tLc Et.toEcat of Prcllt Ed Ls u EEplo?@ B.E.llt ExEns.
?b1.6

PstlalE 2023
Ar .t 31.t luch,

20iA
S€Ficc Cos 5.04 4.39
Nct intere* Co$ 2.OA 2.23

hpca.d E@a!L.d l! th. 6t.tcac.t ot Pront Ed Ls
7.t2 6.63

{b1.6
P.rtlculo A, rt 3l.t Uscb,

2.)23
Ar rt Slrt Xsch,

202/l
Actutrial Gains/(Loss) on Obligation For t}le Period -6.1 1 5.50

tr.t (I!@E.,/E rp.D& tror ttG Pcrlod RG@aEI&d la OCI -6.1r 3.to

l. CbErc h PFsat Vrlu. of ObllatloE
<h Lq

ChaI. b Prteat V.luc of Obllg.tloil Ar .t 3lrt Uuch,
2.)24

& rt 31.t Usch,
2021

Opcning of delincd benefit obligations 28.44 29,46
Senice cost 5.04 4.39
ntcrcst Co$ 2.O8 2.23

BcneEt Paid
'.2.45 12.r4

Actudial (Gain)/hs on total liabilities: (6.1l) (s.s0)
- AE to change infiMciol @nptio6 2.OA l.o7

0.3
- dueto eqqiw wriMce 3.7E (6.s7)
Clo.lag of dclbcd b.acflt obllg.tloE 39.61

^4.a4

Al Coluarclt Ll.bllltY
aProperty Td

B) Ourutco
a Bank Gudmtees

Cl CoEEltE.nt
acapita.l Co@itincnts
b.Rcvenue Comihcnts

Dl Contlnrcnt .&t

2

3

l.

c.
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F. AsuEptlou
Thc maptions under Ind AS I 9 qe st by reference to mukct conditions at tlle valuation date. The Material actutria.lmmptione werc * follows:

{hL€
P.rtlcule L .t 3l.t IEch,

2UrJ
L.t 31tt Iuch,

2024
Assts N.A

6.790/o 7.2to/o

70/"

rate lE-3O yrs-37o, 3l-44 yts-2o/o, Above 44 ]!rs-
lo/o

Ratc IOO o/o of
Ratc N.A

A.E ltlvlt" AldEt
FollowiDg tablc shows ttrc snsitieity rcalts on liabitity due to chuge in the cuEptions

P.rtlculm ,/L .t 3l.t trEch,
2.)25 I8pct (Ab.ohtcl IEp.ct %

39.61
36.E3 (2.78 (7.O3"/.
42.71 3.10 7.A3/o
46.O9 6.4a 16.36"/"
34.29 (s.32) /.13.440/ol
34.67 (0.94) 12.

Notc:-
llrhc be liability is calcul,atcd et di$ountrile of 6.79o/o pcr smm ud slarjr inllation rarc of 7.oo yo per @M for all futurcyeas.

2) Liabilities ac vcry snsitive to slary csalation ratc, di*ount ratc & withdrawal ratc
3) Liabilitics uc vcry lcs ensitive due to chmge in Eortality euoptions. Hcncc, snsitivitics due
to chmgc in morta.lity &e itnored.

Tb. dGn!.d bGlGnt cbtlg.ttoB .h.[ E.IEF .lt.r rr.s ord.d Al.t IEcb, 2O2J u foltoE:
PrcJcct.d B.!.nt Obugruoa prj..bfo l. Yoc frca tbo detrcri
Epdlnt L rt 3l.t IGct,

2023
,Ar .t 31.t IEGb,

2024
o.52 o.5a
0.56 o.63
o.63 0.66

4th

Yea

o.69 0.75
o.75 o.81

134.9E 99.76
138.15 l03.l9

8!E.at RcFrtlEc
The @EPmyb priEsry busincs sglenB coEPri$s of Busines Multilocl c{ Puking {d lceing comercial space. The coEpmy cuies on
tlris busincs at Dclhi. Further' during t].c fi,rcial ycd, in octobcr 2o2g, thc coEpmy hs a.[$ comenced opc.ations in Mmgacs Minera]
Trading.
trlnEGLI nbl luu.a.rt.obt ctlE Ed @ud6
Thc co6puy's princiPal finmcial liabilities coEpri$ loms md borowings, tradc md other payables md finmciaj gud6tec contracts The Eain
purPos of thes fnmcial liabilities is b fnece t]rc compey's opcrations ild to providc tutretees to spport iB operations. The compay,s
principal finocial rets include loms, hdc ed otler rcccivables, curent investEent ed cash sd cash cquivalcnts tltat dcrivc dirccfly fI.oE its
oPcrations' Thc co.pey is cxPosd to mdkct risk, dcdit risk ed liquidity risk. Thc conpmyb *nior Emagement over*es the Buageocnt or
the* risks' The co6p@y's $nior muagcEent ensures that finscial risk activitics qe govcmcd by appropriate policies md procedures od that
finmcial risks dc identfiGd, Ea@red ud amaged in accordecc witJr thc coeFmy's policics sd risk objectivci The smior auagement revifls
ed a&rces policies for amaging each of rhes risks, which ac s@tri$d below:

l) Istct rLL r
Ma'kct risk is the risk thet the fair Yalue of futurc @sh flows of a fuMcia.l inskumcnt sill lluctuatc bccau$ of chmges in adket prices. Mtrket
risl( comPriss three ti|Pes of risk: intcrest ratc risk, cunency risk qd otler price ris&, sch 6 equity price risk md comodity risk. Finacial
intuEcnts allcctcd by aekct aisk includc loos md borowints, dcposits ctc.

{rl htoEt R.t. Rl.Lr
Intercs rate risk is thc risk that the future cosh llows witi respact to intcrest payEents on borowings wiu fluctuatc becaus of cheges in odket
inEre* ratcs Thc Coapmy s etaPosurc to thc risk of ch&8cs in atrkct intcacst rates reletes pai@ily to the comp6y,s long-ter debt oblitations
sith ooatinS interest ratea' hosever the compey does not havc my long-tem debt obligation sith lloating interest rates.

lb L6

tr.

4

of Salay Incrca$

o.

ncrca$ Dr*ount Rate bv o.509/o

"/o

)O"/o
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l(bl Forcld Csfraq RLL :.
Thc coopmy does not have uy foreign cutency risk exposure.

qc ) Othor PH6 Rlrt r
Thc coapmy hro not made ey investocnt in equity ecudties hence no expo$re.

lll Crdlt RIrt :

Credit risk is tlle risk that the countcr parqa will not EGct ib oblitations uder a lirrtrcial inshEent or a dscoEer conracq leading to a fndcial
los. Thc Compmy is erposd b credit risk froa its operating activities (primuily rade receivables), The co@pny m€su.c thc expected credit los
of &adc reccivabl€ bred on hi*orical, rend, industial practiccs md busines cnvtomcnt in which tLe entity operaEs. lrs rates de bed on

actual credit lo$ experiencc ed pdt trends bed on on historical data, los on collection of re@ivables is not matarial hence no provision

considered.

P.'tlcd6 Ar .t 3l.t luch,
2o2J

A. rt 31.t IGch,
2024

l-90 days pst duc
9l to IEO days pd duc 61.29
More thm 180 days pd duc 0.40 575.39
Total 61.69 375.39

flll Lloutdlt" RIrk:
The CoEpdy monitors its risk of a shortage of funds using a liquidity plaming tool, Thc Compuy's objective is to maintain a ba.lmce between

continuity of funding ed IlexibiJity tlrough the u* of cash credit faciuty ed bar-k lous. Liquidit5r risk is defined 6 t}lc risk that the Coapey sill

not be ablc to sttle or Eeet ib obligations on tiae or at a rca$mblc price. The CoEpey's corporatc rca$r]r dcpdtDent is responsibte for

liquidity, funding c wcll s sftleEcnt Eeageaent. In addition, preess dd lrclicies relatcd to sch risks de over*en by snior EmageEent.

ltt(rl I la L.6
iL .t 31.t fGch, 2025 6 Eonth. cs

lcg 6-12 aoith. B.tond 12
monthr Totd

Tradc payablcs 74.O7 2,15 76.22
Other Finmcial Liability

rcg.72
t64.72

lu x2.ao 2.15 x4.93

33)

L .t 3l.t lreh, 2I)24 6 Eonth. or
l.g 5-12 Borth. Ltord 12

EoEttr Totd
Trade payables 197.6a 197.6E
Other Finmcial Liability

1,153.43 I,153.43

Tot l 1,153.43 197.6r 1,351.10

C.pltrl IEEGacat
For thc purpo$ of ttre @Epoy's @pital mmageEent, capital includes ised equity capita.l, atEibuhble to the equity holdcrs of the holding
coapily. Thc priEarjr objectivc of the compmy capital asagcment is to EuiEia thc shucholder va.lue.

The coopoy mages its capital structure md Eakes adjushents in light of chdges in cconomic conditions md t].c rcquircEenB oI the Enmcial
covcmts.
Thc Coapuy Eonitors €pitEl using a geoing ratio, which is net dcbt divided by total @pit8l plus net debt. The Coopdy includes within net debt,
Iom obligation, uade md other payablcs md les cash md cch equivalens.

a lE L.e
PutlculE A. .t 3ltt lreh,

b23
L .t 3l.t fscb,

20ri
Bonowincs 37.052.94 3a.474.76
Tradc payablcs 76.22 76.22
Othcr Finucial Liabiltics 224.31 I,153.43
ToEl Dcbt 37.353.51 39,7(,4.4t
L€$ : Cash & Castr Equivalent 129.44 22.25
tr.t d.bt 37.224.03 39.6e2.17
EquiW 32,775.63 1E,381.77
Totd c.pltd 32,773.64 It,3tl.77
C.plt.l Ed lct dcbt 1,44A.40 21,300.40
Gcdinl Ratio 836,80% It6.3096
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34) E.nho P.r BL@l

331

Net Profit available for Equity Shreholders I Pcr shtement ofProfrt md los
before o0rer cbmprehensive incoae

trct prcOt/(tos, for cdcutrtloE of Bulc EPB t Dllutcd EPs

weighted avcragc nuEbcr ofEquity Shtrcs in celcuLating BGic EPSI & Dilutcd EPs|

EuuInS. tEr Equlty Sh@: F.E YduG of Rt. 1O/' c.ch
B6ic t Diluted

RG@lclll.tlon of Totd copprchcdlc la@EC

ProEt s pcr audited fnmcial Mtcments
AdjusbcnB Impact : Gain / l,s
Prior Period lteEs
Totd

(3,350.E7) {3,795.31)
(3,360.87) (3,795.31)

lhLlo
3l-fs-25 3l-Iu-24

1,19,29,676

l2E.17l

3t,*\scb 2024

|,19,29,676

(31.81)

31.t leh 2023

l{l!hr.bt, |?I!LLt I

(3,53 1.09)

3lrt IGG! 2025 31.t Ieh 2024

@
(14,917.34) (11,311.20)

ll4,9l7.gl (11,31r,201

(3,79s.31)

a2.79

36)

E7l

38)

391

Rc@nclll.tlc! ol Othcr Equltt P.rttculd

Otier Equity s per audited frndcial statemenb
Prior period iten
Totd

ptrtjr balances dc subject to confmation md the balmces shom under fade receivable, radc payable, loms md advmces, othcr curent asts &

liabilites have approximately the we realiMble/ payable value 6 shom in the finmcials.

Previous yed's fiBures have been retrouped/rec6ted, wherever necesry.

CoEpey is not requircd to spend on CSR expendirre s the compmy is not qualified for dy of the following critcria $iPul,ated G Ircr Provision of sdion
135 of the Coopeics Act

4!et wofth of or 6ore thm fivc hundred crores rupees or
b.umovcr of one thouffd crores rupees or rote
c.net profit of rupees five crore or Eore during the im6ediately preccding finmcial yct

4Ol A Eorclti.ttroa gf thc laooc tu crEr,a to thc @ourt @aputcd !t .9plvh( thG .t.tuto( ln@Eo tq ntG to tto Drcnt b.for
la@EG t.g L 4EB.tlrad bclott

( I tn l.li. I
31-Us-25 3l-Xu-24

TaErBe:
Peit B.foE Tu
Otier comprchensive incoac bcfore E
ToEl coaprchcnsive incode beforc H
lndim Shtulory Income Til Rate

E rtEctcd In@Ea Tu Exp.E..t
Tq Elf.ct of .qjutEGnt to rc@acilG qp.ct.d Ii@EG Tu Enpcrc
Tu on 8oodwill not allowed * per II Law, hencc pcmilent difrerence

(3,oo8.Es)
(276.67].

i3,26s.s2l.

25.17"/o

ll,qr2.54)

(3,6sr.0 r)
26.OOo/o

(rrs.22)

Td Effect of Non Dcductible cxpen*s
Other adjustaenb
Tot.l lBoE. tq qtE!& rc@tnt cd b PEnt & Los
a) Ta on nomal incoEe recoSni$d in profrt ud los
b) Til on other coBprehensive incoae recognis€d in profit md los
Totd tE F@aDL.d tn prcnt ad log

3OE.73 (534.oU
(644.7o)

0.00
-693.81

o.05
251.16

-37.50

352.O1 10.69

4rl trdr Yrlu6 EepurcEcBt
The fair valuci of thc Enmcial asB ed tiabilities dc included at thc mount at which thc instnrmcnt could bc cxcheged in a curent tlmsction

314.51

l)
The followinc mcttrods ad NuEDtions wctc usd to e$imatc t}le fair values:

Fair value of cuncnt Nts which incudes loms given, castr od cash equivalents, otler ba.k balances md otller findcial asb aPProxiEate theia

carrjrint dounts ltrgely due to short tem aaturities of thes inshEents.

Finocial inshments witl fxed ad vaiable interest rates de cvaluated by the Compey basd on pd@etcrs such tr interest rates ed

individual credit worthines of the cou[terparty. Basd on this evaluation, a.llowmccs de bken to eccount for expccted loss of t]re* r*civables

Accordingly, fair valuc of $ch inmmenE is not materially differcnt froa thcir car4aint uouB.
The CoEpey uss the following hierdchy for det€@ining ad di$losing the (atu valuc of finmcial insfrEents by valuation techniquc:

lrvel 1: Quotcd (unadju$ed) prices in active Eilkets for identica.l a$ts or liabilities.

I4ELA Otlrcr tcchniqucs for shich Eajor inputs which have a Material cllcct on the recordcd fair va.luc ilc ob$dable, eiticr dirccdy or indircctly.

kygll Techniqucs which us inputs that have a Materia.l ellect on thc rccorded fair yaluc that ile not basd on ob$dable Edket data (Unoberuable input
data).

2l

13,712.s21 (3,53r.O91

13,723.rt}
72.tO

:-- - i :".
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421 DEnt Oc@tL8 .ft.r B.lucc th.Gt d.t I

No sch evcnts.

431 Previous yeas figures havc been regrouped/ reested, wherever nec€<a..ry.
441 Apppd c[FLEcl.l St.tcECrt :

The liaacial #tcEentswcrc approved for ise by the Boad of Directors on Septedbet 5,2024.

43) Othor St.tutory hfctutloE
S Thc Coapmy des not havc uy Benmi property, shere uy proceeding hN be€n initiated or pcldint sgainst t}e CooPey for holding my Benui
property.

ii) CoEpmy docs not have my pcndins chuges yct to bc regi*crd rith ROC beyond the Mtutory period.

iii) The Compmy havc not advmced or givd lod or invcsd funds to oy other peren(s) or entity(ies), including foreiSn cntities (Inbrcdiries) with thc
undertudinS tiat the IntuEediary shall: (a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other IErens or entities identified in my Emneruhat$eve. by or on
bchalf of t}le coEpmy (Ultioate Beneficisics)

iv)Thc CoEpmy hs not bcen dccldcC s Willful defaultcr by dy Banks, Finbcial in$itution or otlrcr lenders.

v)The Codpey docs not havc my sch rmgction which is not recorded in the books of &counts that h6 been ilncndcred or dislosd as incoBe during
the ycd in the E as$sscnb under tic lncome Tu Act, 1961 (sch N, *uch or *ncy or uy othcr rclevot provisions of thc lncomc Td Act, 1961)

RUAIIAIITOO
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Firm Reo.t{o. 1o9z6w

"r^fiW;Pm)cr
McEbcrship No.618282
Placc : Naglrur
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For ud on bchalf of the Bord of Directors of
Apst Irll Ed Pulht PHEt. LlEltod
cil

KuEg
MmaSing Dircctor
(DIN:08r22589)
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KuEc G[ptr
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